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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
2015/16

Narrative Report

Introduction

The Council's financial performance for the year ended 31st March 2016 is as set out in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement and its financial position is as set out in the Balance Sheet and Cash Flow Statement.

These financial statements have been prepared in line with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in
the United Kingdom for the year ended 31st March 2016 (the Code} and the Department for Communities
{formerly Department of the Environment) Accounts Direction, Circular LG 04/2016. It is the purpose of this
foreword to explain, in an gasily understandable way, the financial facts in relation to the Council.

This Statement of Accounts explains Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council's finances during the
financial year 2015/16 and its financial position at the end of that year. It follows approved accounting standards
and is necessarily technical in parts.

Group Accounts

The Code requires Local Authorities to consider all their interests and to prepare a full set of group financial
statements where they have material interests in subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures. Armagh City Banbridge
and Craigavon Borough Council does not have material interests in such bodies and accordingly is not required to
prepare group financial statements.

The Movement in Reserves Statement

This Statement, as set out on page 27, shows the movement in the year aon the different reserves held by the
Council, analysed into 'usable reserves’ {i.e. those that can be applied to fund expenditure or reduce local taxation)
and other reserves. The 'Surplus or (deficit) on the provision of services' line shows the true economic cost of
providing the Council's services, more details of which are shown in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement. These are different from the statutory amounts required to be charged to the General Fund Balance
for Local Tax purposes. The 'Net increase /Decrease before transfers to statutory and other reserves' line shows
the statutory General Fund Balance before any discretionary transfers to or from statutory and other reserves
undertaken by the Council.
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The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This statement, as set out on page 28, shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance
with generally accepted accounting practices, rather than the amount to be funded from taxation. Councils raise
taxation to cover expenditure in accordance with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The
taxation position is shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

The Balance Sheet

The Balance Sheet, as set out on page 29, shows the value as at the Balance Sheet date of the Council's assets and
liabilities. The net assets of the Council (assets less liabilities) are matched by the reserves held by the Council.
Reserves are reported in two categories. The first category of reserves are usable reserves, ie those reserves that
the Council may use to provide services, subject to the need to maintain a prudent level of reserves and any
statutory limitations on their use {for example the Capital Receipts Reserve that may only be used to fund capital
expenditure or repay debt). The second category of reserves are those that the authority is not able to use to
provide services. This category of reserves includes reserves that hold unrealised gains and losses (for example the
Revaluation Reserve), where amounts would only become available to provide services if the assets are sold; and
reserves that hold timing differences shown in the Movement in Reserves Statement line ‘Adjustments between
accounting basis and funding basis under regulations’.

The Cash Flow Statement

The Cash Flow Statement, as set out on page 30, shows the changes in cash and cash equivalents of the Council
during the reporting period. The statement shows how the Council generates and uses cash and cash equivalents
by classifying cash flows as operating, investing and financing activities. The amount of net cash flows arising from
operating activities is a key indicator of the extent to which the operations of the Council are funded by way of
taxation and grant income or from the recipients of services provided by the Council. Investing activities represent
the extent to which cash outflows have been made for resources which are intended to contribute to the Council's
future service delivery, Cash flows arising from financing activities are useful in predicting claims on future cash
flows by providers of capital {i.e. borrowing) ta the Council,
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Financial Report

For the year ended 31 March 2016, the Councils General Fund reserve stands at £16.7m. The net expenditure
incurred during 2015/16 was higher than the net budget, due to expenditure on legacy council projects for which
separate reserves had been earmarked to meet the cost. There was also additional in-year expenditure on staff
severances for which business cases were approved by the Council, however this was offset by a district rates
finalisation payment of £1.69m. The total net expenditure reported in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement is £68.8m and no contributions were made to the Repairs and Renewals Fund, the Capital Fund or to
fund capital expenditure. £1.18m contributions were made from other reserves to the General Fund.

Expenditure on capital projects during the year amounted to £9.9m, the most significant spend was on Partadown
People's Park {a project funded largely by grant assistance from the SEUPB} of £2.8m, Bridgewater House £0.8Bm
and Craigavon & Civic Conference Centre £0.51m.

The Arragh City Banbridge & Craigavon Council came into being on 1st April 2015 and was largely made up of
three legacy Armagh, Banbridge and Craigavon Councils. As there are therefore no directly comparable figures for
the new council, Shadow account figures are included in these financial statements as comparatives.

{a) The Council's financial accounts for the year ended 31st March 2016 are set out on pages 27 to 99 and
consist of:
° The Movement in Reserves Statement - this shows the movement in and accumulated balances of

reserves held by the Council at the year end. These are categorised as either 'Usable’ {i.e. consideration
can be given regarding utiliisng these amounts) or 'Unusable’ {i.e. resources for which a decision has
already been made regarding how they are to be used e.g. funding one-off projects).

° The Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - the Council's main revenue account covering
income and expenditure on all services.

. The Balance Sheet - which sets out the Councils assets and liabilities at the year end.

° The Cash Flow Statement - this includes information regarding inflows and outflows of cash arising from

transactions for both revenue and capital.

® Notes to the accounts

(b) During 2015/16 the Council incurred gross expenditure on Continuing Operations in the amount of
£84.2m. This was supplemented by income from various sources including grants and service users of
£19.2m resulting in Net Expenditure of £65.0m. Service expenditure and income is recorded in the
accounts within Note 2a and is summarised in the table below:

Services Gross Expenditure Gross Income Net Expenditure
£'000 £'000 £'000
Leisure & Recreational Services 35,168 (8,291) 26,877
Environmental Services 29,077 (3,879} 25,198
Planning & Development 10,928 (5,123} 5,805
Highways and Transport Services 517 {789} (273)
DRM and Corporate Management 5,685 {132} 5,553
Other Services 2,847 (971) 1,876
CONTINUING OPERATIONS 84,221 (19,185} 65,036
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{c)

(d)

(e

{f

(g}

{h)

The net expenditure incurred is higher than the net budget set by the Council for 2015/16 at £62.3m.
The difference relates to both expenditure on legacy council projects for which separate reserves had
been earmarked to meet the cost, and also to additional in-year expenditure on staff severances as
referred to in the Remuneration Report.

The Council made a material acquisition during the year in that it procured Bridgewater House in
Banbridge for £0.8m.

The Council's net pension liability is in the region of £32.5m. This is the total estimated liability of the
Council to its current workforce and retired members of the scheme. There is no requirement for the
Council to make a one-off payment to fund this liability, instead the intention is to gradually reduce the
provision via the annual employers contribution and NILGOSC's investment strategy. There are
therefore no immediate pressures which the Council has to fund from Reserves or make any materiai
changes to the Rates.

Part of the Local Government Reform Process included the transfer of functions, services and staff from
Central to Local Government. The outworkings of the transfer were that staff retained their pension
entitlements and on-going access to the Civil Service Pension Scheme (this is an unfunded scheme). The
Council, being the employer of the tranferred staff, was obligated to contribute towards the employees
pensions. Howerver, this is processed in the form of in-year payments and there is therefore no pension
provision.

There are no material or unusual charges or credits in the accounts.

There were no significant changes in accounting policies.

As part of Local Government Reform the Council inherited a number of responsibilities, function , assets
and liabilities from Central Government including Planning, Off Street Car Parking, the Armagh County
Museum and powers in respect of Community Planning. These functions and powers were incorporated
within the new Council and were in addition to the services and functions previously delivered by the
legacy Armagh, Banbridge and Craigavon Councils. Therefore the financial statements for the new
Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Council are materially different from 2all other previous accounts
for the legacy Councils. The new Council whilst progressing on ambitious capital investment
programmes will also carryout internal reviews of service delivery and structures to ensure the
organisation is fit for purpose and effective at delivering for residents and businesses. Some work in
respect of this has already been undertaken and this has resulted in a number of staff severances
(regarding which the Council has identified payback within 3.25 years and recurring savings thereafter).

The creation of the new council on 1st April 2015 resulted in the transfer of all assets and liabilities from
the Armagh, Banbridge and Craigavon |egacy Councils. As consequence, the total historical borrowings
and loans assumed by the new Council at that time amounted to just over £47m. All loans were secured
by Government borrowings and LOBOs {Lender Option Borrower Option). No new loans were advanced
to the Council in 2015/16.
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(i}

()

(k)

M

The Council has been able fund the delivery of services and capital investment by means of income from
the district rates and grants from central government together with reliance on loans and borrowings
that were undertaken by the three legacy Councils. No new loans or borrowings were required by the
Council in 2015/16.

No significant provisions, contingencies or material write-offs occurred during the financial year.

There are no material post balance sheet events to be reported upon at the date of approval of these
financial statements.

There are a number of economic factors that can impact on local councils, including inflation, interest
rates, pay settlements and general uncertainity within financial markets. The current economic climate
does provide challenges to the Council particularly with regards to providing value for money to local
ratepayers. However, the Council is confident that its strategies and corporate plans together with the
close working relationships between Members and Officials will ensure the continued delivery of
effective and effcient public services and enhance economic development within the borough.
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Statement of the Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities for the Statement of Accounts

The Council’s Responsibilities

Under Section 1 of the Local Government Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011 a council shall make arrangements
for the proper administration of its financial affairs. A council shall designate an officer of the council as its chief
financial officer and these arrangements shall be carried out under the supervision of its chief financial officer.

Under Regulation 7 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 the Council,
or a Committee, is required by resolution, to approve the accounts.

These accounts were approved by the Performance and Audit Committee on 22 September 16

The Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities

Under Regulation 8 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015, the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the Council’s Statement of Accounts in the form directed by
the Department for Communities {formerly Department of the Environment).

The accounts must give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year
and the financial position as at the end of the financial year.

In preparing this Statement of Accounts, the Chief Financial officer is required to:

® observe the Accounts Direction issued by the Department for Communities (formerly Department of the
Environment) including compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the
United Kingdom

™ follow relevant accounting and disclosure requirements and apply suitable accounting policies on a
consistent basis, and

[ make judgements and estimates that are reasonable and prudent.

The Chief Financial Officer is also required to:
] keep proper accounting records that are up-to-date, and

® take reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregularities.
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ANNUAL GOVERNANCE STATEMENT
Scope of Responsibility

Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council is responsible for ensuring that its business is conducted in
accordance with the law and proper standards, and that public money is safeguarded and properly accounted for,
and used economically, efficiently and effectively. The Council also has a duty under Local Government {Best Value)}
Act (Northern Ireland) 2014 to make arrangements for continuous improvement in the way in which its functions
are exercised, having regard to a combination of economy, efficiency and effectiveness.

In discharging this overall responsibility, the Council is responsible for putting in place proper arrangements for the
governance of its affairs, facilitating the effective exercise of its functions, which includes arrangements for the
management of risk.

The Council has prepared an Annual Governance Statement which is consistent with the principles of the
CIPFA/SOLACE Framework Delivering Good Governance in Local Government. This statement explains how the
Council meets the requirements of Regulation 4 of the Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations
(Northern Ireland) 2015 in relation to the publication of an Annual Governance Statement.

The Purpose of the Gavernance Framework

The governance framework comprises the systems and processes, and culture and values, by which the Council is
directed and controlled and its activities through which it accounts to, engages with and leads the community. It
enables the Council to monitor the achievement of its strategic objectives and to consider whether those objectives
have led to the delivery of appropriate, cost-effective services.

The system of internal control is a significant part of that framework and is designed to manage risk to a reasonable
level. it cannot eliminate all risk of failure to achieve policies, aims and objectives and can therefore only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance of effectiveness, The system of internal control is based on an ongoing
process designed to identify and prioritise the risks to the achievement of the Council's policies, aims and
objectives, to evaluate the likelihood of those risks being realised and the impact should they be realised, and to
manage them efficiently, effectively and economically.

The governance framework has been in place at Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council for the
year ended 31 March 2016 and up to the date of approval of the Financial Statements and the Annual Governance
Statement.

The governance framework

As part of the governance system Council approved a traditional committee model made up of seven committees
linked to the corporate plan and organisational design complementing the need for a Planning Committee and
Audit Committee.
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The structure is designed to reflect the Council's Vision and Strategic Priorities as set out in the Corporate Plan ie

Prosperity, Peaple and Place. A key element of the structure is to ensure a ‘One Council’ approach by enabling
cross Directorate working.

The committee system is inclusive of all parties and enables all 41 Members to participate in the decision making
process in an open and transparent way engendering a sense of ownership and belonging.

The structure is illustrated below:

i i
PLACE PEQPLE
- gle?nfﬂla%%r? Economic Dev. & | ' Environmental
h *“g E T A Regeneration Services
_services
Leisure &
—  Community
Services

The Governance, Policy and Resources Committee is responsible for Organisational Development and Change, ICT,

Procurement, Governance, Legal, Finance and Business Services, Human Resources and Civic, Democratic and
Customer Services.

The Performance and Audit Committee is responsible for Internal Audit, Risk Management, Performance and
Improvement. It provides an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s risk management framework

and associated control environment and an independent scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial
performance.

The Planning and Regularity Services Committee is responsible for Planning Application Enforcement and Area
Planning.

The Strategic and Community Planning Committee is responsible for Corporate and Community Planning,
Enforcement, Asset and Fleet Management, Building Control, Licensing, Contracts, Public Bodies and Conservation,
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The Economic Development and Regeneration Committee is responsible for Economic Development, Business
Development, EU Investment, Arts and Tourism Facilities, Events, Museums, Rural Development, Town Centres and
Public Realm and Car Parking.

The Environmental Services Committee is responsible for Environmental Health, Emergency Planning, Waste
Management, Public Domain, Streets, Grounds, Cemeteries and Toilets.

The Leisure and Community Services Committee is responsible for Indoor and Outdoor Leisure Facilities, Play,
Sports Development, Community Services, Good Relations and PCSP.

In addition to the above Committees there are also Estimates, |T and Financial Assistance Working Groups,

In the Council's second year of operation the governance framework will be subject to an operational review and
will be amended accordingly to ensure compliance with all legislation, with the ultimate aim of enabling the
improvement of outcomes for all our citizens. The Council’'s Code of Governance is based on the six core principles
set out in the CIPFA/SQLACE Framework and how the Council meet their principles is reviewed and updated
annually with the key elements detailed below:

FOCUS ON PURPOSE AND QGUTCOMES
This will be achieved by the following:

Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council Corporate Plan
Community Planning and Community Support Plan
Performance Improvement Plan

Regeneration and Development Strategy

Strategic Masterplanning

Corporate and departmental planning

Social Media Strategy and Policy

Strategic financial management framewaork in place
Corporate Complaints Procedure

Annual Financial Report

Procurement Policy, Procedures and Guidelines
Treasury Management reporting

YVYVYVYYVVYYYYYY

WORKING TOGETHER
This will be achieved by the following:

Council Constitution

Standing Orders

Financial Regulations

Committee structure and reporting

Party Leaders Forum

Mandatory Code of Conduct for Councillors
Code of Canduct for Officers

Scheme of Delegation

lob Descriptions/Specifications

Terms and Conditions of employment

YOO VY Y Y VYWY VY
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PROMOTING VALUES OF GOOD GOVERNANCE

This will be achieved by the following:

VY YYYYYVYYYYYYY

Corporate Plan

Standing Orders

Financial Regulations

Fraud and Corruption Policy

Whistleblowing Policy

Equality Scheme and Action Plan

Gifts and Hospitality Policy

Register maintained of Members’ pecuniary interests
Sustainable Development Plan

Good Relations Plan

Code of Conduct for Officers

Mandatory Code of Canduct for Councillors
Declarations of Interests is a standing agenda item at Council and Committee meetings
Ethical requirements of Professional bodies

TAKING INFORMED AND TRANSPARENT DECISIONS AND MANAGING RISK

This will be achieved by the following:

YV VYV VVVVYYVYVVYYYYY

Standing Orders

Scheme of Delegation

Financial Regulations

Committee structure

Committee reporting system

On line minutes

Council meetings are open to the public and members of the media
Internal Audit Service - effectiveness reviewed annually
Performance and Audit Committee with externally appointed Lay Representatives (2)
Risk Management Strategy and Plan

Risk Management training

Budgetary Control

Elected Members Development Charter accreditation

Staff induction and training

Ongoing consultation processes

Legal advice obtained as necessary

6 monthly Assurance Statements

DEVELOPING CAPACITY AND CAPABILITY

This will be achieved by the following:

YV VY

Continuation of Mandatory Health and Safety training
Equality training

Registration for Member Development

Members Development Charter

10
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> Training for Members
> Performance and Audit Committee training
> QUB Leadership Institute training
rd Induction training
e Organisational development and capacity building
e Departmental/Operational Business Plans
e Recruitment and selection procedures

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT AND ENSURING ROBUST PUBLIC ACCOUNTABILITY
This will be achieved by the following:

Community Planning Process
Regeneration and Development Strategy
Community Planning

Community Support Plan

Rural Development Programme
Strategic Masterplanning

Local Development Plan

Statement of Community Involvement
Communication of Corporate Plan

Good Relations Action Pian

Active Communities Programme
Attendance at Council meetings of the media
Minutes of Council meetings on web site
Council web site

Complaints procedures

VYVVVYVYVYVYVVYYYYY

The Local Government Act {NI) 2014 legislated the Council's general power of competence enabling a Council to
take any action it considered appropriate provided the action was not prohibited by any other legislation. The
Council has been provided with the ability to act in their own interests and to develop innovative approaches to
addressing issues in the borough. Any issues that may require the Council to exercise the general power of
competence will be processed through the Council committee structure. The nominated committee is the
Governance, Policy & Resources Committee. The actual expenditure under the Power of Competence amounted to
£4,445 during 2015-16.

Review of Effectiveness

The Council has responsibility for conducting, at least annually, a review of the effectiveness of its governance
framework including the system of internal control. The review of effectiveness is informed by the work of the
executive managers within the Council who have responsibility for the development and maintenance of the
governance environment, the Head of Audit’s annual report, and alsoc by comments made by the external auditors.

11
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1 Members

The Council's Standing Crders and Financial Regulations provide the framework for its decision making processes
and sets out the detailed procedures and codes of conduct by which Members and officers operate to achieve
Council objectives. Members meet regularly on a formal basis to set the strategic direction and monitor the service
delivery of the Council, The following Committee Structure is in place:

Governance, Policy and Resources Committee
Performance and Audit Committee

Planning and Regulatory Services Committee
Strategic and Community Planning Committee
Economic Development and Regeneration Committee
Environmental Services Committee

Leisure and Community Services Committee

The Party Leaders Forum seeks to provide an informal sounding board on major strategic and operational issues in
advance of submission to Council, thereby facilitating and streamlining the conduct of Council business. This group
meets on a monthly basis.

2 Senior Officers

Strategic Directors and Heads of Departments completed & monthly Stewardship Certificates and Assurance
Statements respectively. In signing their Stewardship Certificate Directors opinions were informed by the following:

Assurance from the relavant Heads of Department

Directorate and Departmental Risk Registers {where applicable)
Operational policies and procedures

Internal Audit reports

Administrative procedures {including segregation of duties)
Management Supervision

System of delegation and accountability

® & & ¢ o & 0

The Executive Management Team and all Heads of Department are currently attending the QUB Leadership
Institute as part of an overall programme to strengthen leadership within the organisation and formulate strategy.

12
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3 Audit Committee

The Council has a Performance and Audit Committee which reports to full Council and oversees the work of
Internal Audit which operates to the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards which came into effect from 1 April
2013. The terms of reference (Audit Committee Charter) which sets out the purpose and roles and responsibilities
was revised in February 2016.

There are 7 Members on the Committee and during 2015/16 meetings were held in May, June and October 2015
and in February 2016. The Northern Ireland Audit Office was in attendance at three of the four meetings during the
year and the Chief Executive and Internal Audit attend all meetings. In line with best practice two external Lay
Representatives were appointed.

A Performance and Audit Committee Annual Report 2015/16 was presented and approved at the May 2016
meeting. The annual report included the annual audit committee self assessment and this was completed in time to
support the completion of the Annual Governance Statement. The self-assessment concluded that the Performance
and Audit Committee was compliant in most areas. Improvements in relation to the effectiveness of the
Performance and Audit Committee were identified and are being addressed through further training scheduled for
27 September 2016.

The Performance and Audit Committee received formal training in June 2015 and the Terms of Reference have
been documented and approved by the Committee. The terms of reference set out a clear statement of purpose
that it will provide an independent assurance on the adequacy of the Council’s risk management framework and
associated control environment. It will provide an independent scrutiny of the Council’s financial and non-financial
performance to the extent that it exposes it to risk and weakens the contral environment.

4 Internal Audit

The aim of Internal Audit is to provide an independent assurance and advisory service which will help the Council
achieve its objectives and improve the effectiveness of its risk management, control and governance processes. In
preparing the overall audit opinion Internal Audit reviewed all audit and risk activity carried out during the year
and the following extract is taken from the Internal Audit Annual Report for 2015/16:

‘The overall opinion is that there is a satisfactory level of internal control within the Council's systems and
procedures. This opinion is based upon the work of Internal Audit during the 2015/16 financial year. Internal Audit
is not able to give an opinion on areas that have not been covered by the service.'

In all areas Internal Audit recommendations were agreed with senior management, with improvement plans drawn
up and priority actions required to be implemented with defined timescales.

13
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The effectiveness of the Council’s internal controls is examined in detail through the work of Internal Audit. The
audit plan is based on a needs and risk assessment process that focuses resources on higher risk areas and meets
the professional standards required by the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards. Based on evidence from planned
audits and any special investigations, Internal Audit reports to the Performance and Audit Committee on any major
weaknesses that have been identified in the internal controls examined and highlights where important
improvements are considered necessary.

Internal Audit continue to facilitate the development of risk management throughout the Council.

A self-assessment against the Public Sector Internal Audit Standards was completed in May 2016 the conclusion
being that Internal Audit was substantially compliant and therefore operating effectively.

The 6 core principles contained in the CIPFA/SOLACE framework sets out in tabular form the key systems, processes
and documents that provide evidence of compliance and any relevant planned improvement actions, along with
the names of the responsible officers to facilitate review and monitoring. Internal Audit completed the annual
review of the corporate governance to determine compliance against the 6 governance principles, and this review
assisted in the preparation of the Annual Governance Statement.

During the year 18 audits were completed. Of these 18, 5 limited audits were given (Loughgall Country Park,
Recycling Centres, Waves, Planning and Armagh Youth Hostel). As a result of post audit reviews completed 4 of the
5 limited audits moved to satisfactory. There is one outstanding limited assurance audit and a Post Audit Review is
scheduled for October 2016. Details are noted below:

Planning

There were 19 recommendations made. Significant issues were noted around the lack of planning officer checks on
planning fees received. In addition the requirement for 10% supervisory checks on planning fees were not being
completed and 100% checks on fee exempt applications were not being done. The lack of oversight on fees
received increases the risk of error and loss of income.

Roles and responsibilities over the processing of appeals and recording of key dates on the Planning Portal had not
been clearly established between the administrative team and the Planners resulting in a number of appeals not
being recorded on the appeals spreadsheet and inaccuracies in recording information on the Planning Portal and
the spreadsheet.

The review identified a lack of segregation of duties over the processing of refunds as the same person prepares
the refund paper work, requests the cheques from finance and processes and issues the refund. There is an
increased risk of fraud and error in the absence of segregation of duties.

Approximately 40% of applications reviewed did not meet the processing target of 15 weeks for local applications
or 30 weeks for major applications. The lack of adequate staff resources during the year contributed to the delayed
processing rates noted.

14
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5 Other explicit review/assurance mechanisms

Risk Management has been established in so far as there is currently a Corporate risk register and 4 Directorate risk
registers which are reported to the Performance and Audit Committee on a quarterly basis. Work is ongoing on the
development of Departmental risk registers and it is anticipated that these will be in place by the end of 2016.17.
All risks are recorded on a comprehensive database which is maintained for managing risks and action plans.

The Northern Ireland Audit Office provides a level of assurance through the provision of their annual audit and
issuing of a management letter which includes recommendations to address issues identified.

External funding received throughout the year is usuaily subject to independent audits from the relevant funders
i.e. Europe, Government Departments, SEUPB etc.

Role of Chief Financial Officer

The Chief Executive is the Council’s designated Chief Financial Officer under the Local Government Finance Act
{Northern Ireland) 2011. He has authority over all other officers for the efficient management and execution of the
Council's functions. The Council’s financial arrangements conform to the governance requirements of the CIPFA
Statement on the Role of the Chief Financial Officer in Local Government (2010} as set out in the Application Note
to Delivering Good Governance in Local Government Framewaork with the exception of Principle 5 “The CFO in a
local authority must be professionally qualified and suitably experienced.” The Local Government arrangements
are such that the CFO is supported by a number of fully qualified and experienced staff within the Performance
Directorate who are members of various bodies within the Consultative Committee of Accountancy Bodies (CCAB)
and as such ensure the decisions made by the CFO are based on sound technical knowledge and understanding.

Significant Governance Issues

The progress made on dealing with the significant governance issues identified in the legacy Council 2014/15
Annual Governance Statements is shown below (1 to 4}):

1 LOCAL GOVERNEMENT REFORM

Employees of the 3 former Councils have transferred under TUPE on 1 April 2015 with existing terms and
conditions, The Council has undergone significant organisational change during the year merging the 3 former
Councils and taking responsibility for Planning and Car Park functions transferred from Central Government.
Harmonisation of policies and systems is ongoing. All Heads of Department have been appointed and 3 Strategic
Directors, including an Interim Director have been appointed. There is a timetable prepared for the filling of the
Interim and remaining Strategic Director posts.

15
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2 ASSET MANAGEMENT

A workshop facilitated by CIPFA was held on strategic management which introduced Members to the impartance
of having a Corporate Asset Management Plan. Following the workshop a number of officer working groups were
established to review Asset Management, Maintenance and Energy and Contract Management. All Council fand
and property assets are now listed on a database {Asset Management System). Officers have been reviewing and
validating condition surveys with a view to developing a programme of planned maintenance during 2016/17 as a
means to also informing the budget/estimates process. Work is also progressing on developing a capital
programme in consultation with Members and Senior Officers. An audit of Asset Management is included to the
2015/16 Internal Audit plan.

3 ABSENTEEISM

Council is continually actively monitoring sickness absence which supports the legacy Council Attendance
Management policies, There are plans to amalgamate the current sickness absence recording systems into one
PAMS. The Occupational Health Murse and Occupational Health Doctor continue to assist HR in the absence
management process. The average days lost per employee for 2015.16 was 14.16 days.

4 FRAUD RISK

Internal Audit have continued to carry out fraud risk assessments across all Council facilities. It is planned to
complete an overall Fraud Risk Assessment using the NIAO guidance issued in November 2015 and consider
development of a counter fraud and corruption strategy.

5 INTERREG IiA PROGRAMME IRELAND/NORTHERN IRELAND 2000-2006 PROJECT REF.026413 WOOD
DERIVED BIOMASS HEATING

On 6 May 2011 the Department of Enterprise, Trade and Investment {DETI} wrote to the legacy Craigavon Borough
Council requesting a claw back of £198,747 in relation to the European funded Biomass Boiler Scheme. On
Wednesday 23 November 2011 DETI served a Writ of Summons against Craigavon Borough Council. Both insurance
and legal advice has been sought over the last 5 years and a meeting has recently been held with DETI to discuss a
resolution with Council keen to avoid incurring any further legal costs. At that meeting formal mediation was
considered as a way of resolving this issue. A provision for the clawback had been included in the Council's
accounts.

6 ARMAGH CITY and DISTRICT COUNCIL — LEGAL CASE

There is an ongoing case with the NI Ombudsman. The Council is attempting to resolve and close this case through
a mediation process.
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7 COMMUNITY PLANNING

The Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council's Community Planning process involves the
development of a long term strategy for the area and all its citizens based on a thorough analysis of needs and
priorities, and opportunites for addressing them. The process should achieve an integrated view of social, economic
and environmental needs of the area in the context of regional, national and European policies and strategies,
taking into account communities and issues that extend into neighbouring council areas and jurisdictions. Statutory
guidance recommends the community plan is published by April 2017. The following actions have been agreed:

Development of structures and processes
Establish governance structures and support
Create a baseline of evidence

Capacity building and engagement

8 RISK MANAGEMENT

The Risk Management process needs strengthening and embedding through the Council. There is a need to
develop the Risk Management and Business Continuity Strategies ensuring that they align to the Council's
corporate objectives and risk appetite.

signed ;D(Z’Q.\ Date 94( C‘( &

Signed @wx.e/; /qg\.&‘/ Date lﬂll ? ('2'0(6

On behalf of the Committee of the Council and by the Chief Executive
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REMUNERATION REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

INTRODUCTION

The Local Government {Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 require larger local government
bodies to prepare a remuneration report as part of the statement of accounts.

ALLOWANCE AND REMUNERATION ARRANGEMENTS
COUNCILLORS

Allowances are payable by councils to councillors and committee members under Part 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011 and The Local Government (Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern
Ireland} 2012, which came into operation on 1 April 2012,

Following a review of allowances, carried out by an independent Councillors’ Allowances Remuneration Panel,
which was appointed in May 2013, the Minister of the Environment advised the Northern Ireland Assembly in a
written statement of the new levels of allowances applicable for councillars from 1 April 2015.

Guidance and determinations on Councillors’ Allowances applicable from 1 April 2015 were issued by the
Department for Communities (formerly Department of the Environment) on 24 February 2015 (Circulars LG
04/2015 and LG 05/2015 respectively). The determinations and rates have been updated in LG 29/2015 due to the
increase in Dependants’ Carer’s Allowance from 1 October 2015. Details of the allowances paid to individual
councillors are published on council websites.

Following local elections on 22 May 2014, 462 councillors were elected to the 11 new councils for a four year term.
Armagh City, Banbridge & Craigavon Borough Council had 41 councillors in 2015/16.

SENIOR EMPLOYEES
The remuneration of senior employees employed by the Council is determined by the Council in line with that

determined by the National Joint Council {MNJC) for Local Government Services. Senior staff are those staff who are
members of the Executive Management Team.

Council appointments of employees are made in accordance with the Local Government Staff Commissions’ Code
of Procedures on Recruitment and Selection, which requires appointment to be on merit and on the basis of fair
and open competition.

Unless otherwise stated below, the officials covered by this report hold appointments which are open-ended.
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ALLOWANCES PAID TO COUNCILLORS

The total amount paid to Councillors by way of allowances in 2015/16, under Part 3 of the Local Government
Finance Act (Northern treland) 2011 and the Local Government {Payments to Councillors) Regulations (Northern

Ireland} 2012 was:

Table 1: Total Allowances paid to councillors in 2015/16 {Audited information)

Allowance Total Allowances Number of Councillors

£ receiving Allowance
Basic Allowance 582,198 41
Special Responsibility Allowance 99,000 19
Mayor Allowance 18,000 1
Deputy Mayor Allowance 8,000 1
Mileage Allowance 43,850 36
Other Travel Allowance 0 0
Public Transport 0 0
Subsistence 842 7
Courses/ Conferences Visits 119 5
Dependents' Carers Allowance 2,285 2
TOTAL ALLOWANCES 754,294

Details of the allowances paid to individual councillors in 2015/16 are published on the council website.

www.armaghbanbridgecraigavon.gov.uk

REMUNERATION OF SENIOR EMPLOYEES

The remuneration of senior employees covers the Executive Management Team, The following table provides
details of the remuneration paid to senior employees in 2015/16 all of whom were in post for the full year:

Table 2: Remuneration paid to senior employees in 2015/16 {Audited information}

Officers 2015/16
Salary (Full year Bonus Payments Benefits in kind (to Total
equivalent in nearest £100)
brackets where
applicable}
£'000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Roger Wilson - Chief 105- 110 105-110
Executive
|0lga Murtagh - 80-85 80-85

Director of Place
Sharon O'Gorman - 80-85 80-85
Director of Position

There was no Director of Performance during 2015/16 as this post is still to be recruited. The Director of People
post was filled on an interim basis by contracting with a recruitment agency.
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Councils are required to disclose the relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the
Executive Management Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce.

The banded remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management Team in the financial year

2015/16 was £105k - £110k. This was 5.1 times the median remuneration of £21.6k for contracted FTE employees.

Table 3: Relationship between the remuneration of the highest paid member of the Executive Management
Team and the median remuneration of the Councils workforce {Audited information)

2015/16 £'000
Median Total Remuneration £21.6k
Ratio 5.1

In 2015/16, no employees received remuneration in excess of the highest paid member of the Executive
Management Team.

Total remuneration includes salary, bonus payments and benefits in kind.

Salary
“Salary” includes gross salary, overtime, and any gratia payments.

Bonus Payments

Bonus payments are based on performance levels attained and are made as part of the appraisal process. Bonuses
relate to the performance in the year in which they become payable to the individual. The bonuses reported in
2015/16 relate to performance in 2015/16. No bonuses were paid in 2015/16.

Benefits in Kind
The monetary value of benefits in kind covers any benefits provided by the employer and treated by HM Revenue
and Customs as a taxable emolument. No benefits in kind were paid in 2015/16.

Exit Packages for staff
The number of exit packages provided to all staff by the Council during 2015/16, together with total cost per band
and total cost of the compulsory and other redundancies are set out in the table below:

Table 4: Exit Packages in 2015/16 (Audited information)

Severance Package |Number of Number of Other Total Number of Exit Total Cost of
|Cost Band Compulsory departures agreed Packages in each Cost Packages in each
Redundancies Band Cost Band
£'000
£0 - £20,000 0 1 1 20
£20,001 - £40,000 0 2 2 60
£40,001 - £60,000 0 3 3 140
£60,001 - £80,000 0 2 2 142
£80,001 - £100,000 0 0 0 0
£100,001 - £150,000 0 1 1 112
£150,001 - £200,000 0 4 4 718
Total 0 13 13 1,192

20



Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Group Financial Statements
2015/16

Pension Benefits

The Local Government Pension Scheme {Northern Ireland) (the Scheme) which is a funded defined benefit pension
scheme, which provides retirement benefits for council employees on a “career average revalued earnings” basis
from 1 April 2015. Prior to that date benefits were built up on a “final salary” basis.

From 1 April 2015, a member builds up retirement pension at the rate of 1/49th pensionable pay for each year.
Pension benefits in relation to membership between 1 April 2009 and 31 March 2015 were built up at the rate of
1/60th pensionable pay for each year of membership. There is no automatic lump sum provided in respect of
membership after 31 March 2009. Pension benefits in relation to any membership before 1 April 2009 were built
up at the rate of 1/80th (pension) and 3/80ths (tax-free lump sum) of pensionable pay for each year of
membership up to 31 March 2005. At retirement, members may give up some pension for additional lump sum,
subject to HM Revenue and Customs {HMRC) limits, The conversion rate is £12 additional lump sum for every £1 of
pension given up.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011. The Scheme application is modified to reftect the
fact that councillors hold an elected office. Councillor members have always accrued pension on a career average
basis. Prior to 1 April 2015 pension was accrued at a rate of 1/60th and thereafter at a rate of 1/49th,

The Scheme is funded by contributions made by both employees/councillors and employers. Prior to 1 April 2009, a
member’s contribution rates were fixed at 6% of their pensionable remuneration (except for those who were
entitied to contribute to the Scheme at 5% before 1 February 2003 and have remained in continuous employment}.
Tiered member contribution rates, determined by the whole-time equivalent rate of pay, were introduced from 1
April 2008. From 1 April 2015, the member contribution rates are determined on the actual rate of pay.

The ranges for the bands for tiered contribution rates are revised by the Department for Communities {formerly
Department of the Environment) in April each year in accordance with the increase applied to a pension in
payment. The bands, effective from 1 April 2015, were as follows:

Table 5: Employee Contribution Rates (Audited information}

Band Range Employee Contribution Rate
1 £0 - £14,000 5.50%
2 £14,001 - £21,300 5.80%
3 £21,301 - £35,600 6.50%
4 £35,601 - £43,000 6.80%
5 £43,001 - £85,000 8.50%
6 Maore than £85,000 10.50%

Employers’ contribution rates are determined by the fund’s actuary every three years at the triennial valuation.
The 2013 triennial valuation was undertaken as at 31 March 2013 and an employer contribution rate of 20% for
those employers whose participation in the Scheme is deemed to be indefinite has been set for the following three
years, effective from 1 April 2014:
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Table 6: Employer Contribution Rates (Audited information)

Year Employer Contribution Rate
1 April 2014 - 31 March 2015 20%
1 April 2015 - 31 March 2016 20%
1 April 2016 - 31 March 2017 20%

The Local Government Pension Scheme Regulations {Northern treland) 2014 were made on 27 lune 2014 and The
Local Government Pension Scheme {Amendment and Transitional Provisions) Regulations {Northern Ireland} 2014

were made on 30 June 2014, Both sets of regulations are effective from 1 April 2015.

Councillors have been able to join the Scheme since May 2011 and therefore have not accrued significant benefits
thus far. However, the in-year pension contributions made by the Council for all councillors during 2015/16 was

£141,441.

The value of pension benefits of the most senior management of the Council accrued during the year was as

follows:

Table 7: Pension Benefits of senior staff in 2015/16 {Audited information)

The pension benefits of senior staff as provided by NILGOSC are detailed in the table below:

Officers Accrued Pension at Real Real CETV at CETV at Real increase in
pension age asat | increase in | increasein| 31/3/16 31/3/15 CETV
31/3/16 pension at | lump sum
pension | at pension
£ age age £'000 £'000 £'000
£ £
IChief Executive - 30,001 - 35,000 2,501 - 2,501- 4384 442 37
Roger Wilson 5,000 5,000
Director of Place - 25,001 - 30,000 5,001 - 10,001 - 429 313 104
Olga Murtagh 7,500 12,500
Director of Position - 20,001 - 25,000 5,001 - 5,001 - 285 210 64
Sharon O'Gorman 7.500 7,500

There was no Director of Performance during 2015/16 as this post is still to be recruited, The Director of People
post was filled on an interim basis by contracting with a recruitment agency, and, as such, has no associated

pension costs.
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The Cash Equivalent Transfer Value {CETV)

This is the actuarially assessed capitalised value of the pension scheme benefits accrued by a member at a
particular point in time. The benefits valued are the member’s accrued benefits and any contingent spouse’s
pension payable from the scheme. It is a payment made by a pension scheme or arrangement to secure pension
benefits in another pension scheme or arrangement when the member leaves a scheme and chooses to transfer
the pension benefits they have accrued in their former scheme. The pension figures shown relate to the benefits
that the individual has accrued as a consequence of their total membership of the pension scheme, not just their
service in a senior capacity to which disclosure applies. CETVs are calculated in accordance with The Occupational
Pension Schemes (Transfer Values) (Amendment) Regulations and do not take account of any actual or potential
reduction to benefits resulting from Lifetime Allowance Tax which may be due when pension benefits are taken.

The real increase in the value of the CETV

This reflects the increase in CETV effectively funded by the employer. It takes account of the increase in accrued
pension due to inflation, contributions paid by the employee (including the value of any benefits transferred from
another pension scheme or arrangement) and uses common market valuation factors for the start and end of the
period,

Chief Executive
27 September 2016
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Certificate of the Chief Financial Officer

| certify that:

(a) the Statement of Accounts for the year ended 31st March 2016 on pages 27 to 99 has been prepared in
the form directed by the Department for Communities {formerly Department of the Environment) and
under the accounting policies set out on pages 31 to 53.

(b) in my opinion the Statement of Accounts gives a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and
cash flows for the financial year and the financial position as at the end of the financial year ending 31st
March 2016.

Chief Financial Officer

Date atp{q ‘{(a

Council Approval of Statement of Accounts

Pe,rpor‘monce o-r\C' A“‘A{' Commitlee ©n 22 §e{.vianba“ 16
These accounts were approved by the Chisf Financial Officeron-27-5eptember2blb.

Lsor ool

Chair of the Performance and Audit Committee

Date c:.}-l‘ q\lﬂl‘o
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF ARMAGH CITY, BANBRIDGE AND CRAIGAVON
BOROUGH COUNCIL

I have audited the financial statements of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council for the year
ended 31 March 2016 under the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005. The financial statements
comprise the Movement in Reserves Statement, Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, Balance
Sheet, Cash Flow Statement and the related notes. The financial statements have been prepared under the
accounting policies set out within them. I have also audited the information in the Remuneration Report that is
described in that report as having been audited.

This report is made solely to the Members of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council in
accordance with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and for no other purpose, as specified in
the Statement of Responsibilities.

Respective responsibifities of the Chief Financial Officer and the independent auditor

As explained more fully in the Statement of Council’s and Chief Financial Officer’s Responsibilities, the Chief
Financial Officer is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they
give a true and fair view of the income and expenditure and cash flows for the financial year and the financial
position as at the end of the financial year. My responsibility is to audit the financial statements in accordance
with the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local Government Code of Audit Practice. |
conducted my audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland). Those standards
require me and my staff to comply with the Auditing Practices Board's Ethical Standards for Auditors.

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves obtaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient
to give reasonable assurance that the financial statements are free from material misstatement, whether
caused by fraud or error. This includes an assessment of: whether the accounting policies are appropriate to
the Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council's circumstances and have been consistently
applied and adequately disclosed; the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by Armagh
City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council; and the overall presentation of the financial statements. In
addition | read all the financial and non-financial information in the Statement of Accounts to identify material
inconsistencies with the audited financial statements and to identify any information that is apparently
materially incorrect based on, or materially inconsistent with, the knowledge acguired by me in the course of
performing the audit. If | become aware of any apparent material misstatements or inconsistencies | consider
the implications for my report.

Opinion on financial statements
In my opinion:

» the financial statements give a true and fair view, in accordance with relevant legal and statutory
requirements and the Code of Practice on Lacal Authority Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015-16,
of the financial position of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council as at 31 March
2016 and its income and expenditure for the year then ended; and

e the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with the Local Government
{Accounts and Audit) Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015 and the Department for Communities
{formerly Department of the Environment] directions issued thereunder.

Opinion on other matters
In my opinion:
» the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with

the Department for Communities directions made under the Local Government {Accounts and Audit}
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Regulations (Northern Ireland) 2015; and

* theinformation given in the Narrative Report for the financial year ended 31 March 2016 is consistent
with the financial statements,

Matters on which I report by exception

I have nothing to report in respect of the following matters which | report to you if:
* in my opinion:
o the Annual Governance Statement:

* does not reflect compliance with the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting
in the United Kingdom 2015-16 ;

* does not comply with proper practices specified by the Department for
Communities;

* is misieading or inconsistent with ather information | am aware of from my audit; or
o adequate accounting records have not been kept; or

o the statement of accounts and the part of the Remuneration Report to be audited are not
in agreement with the accounting records; or

o |have not received all of the information and explanations | require for my audit, or

® lissueareport in the public interest under Articie 9 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order
2005; or

¢ | designate under Article 12 of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 any
recommendation made to the Council; or

* | exercise the other special powers of the auditor under Article 19 to 21 of the Local Government
(Morthern Ireland) Order 2005.

Certificate

I certify that | have completed the audit of accounts of Armagh City, Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
in accordance with the requirements of the Local Government (Northern Ireland) Order 2005 and the Local
Government Code of Audit Practice.

Louise Mason

Local Government Auditor
Northern Irefand Audit Office
106 University Street

Belfast

BT7 1EU

- g{\; Vo 20\b

Date
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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Movement in Reserves Statement far the year ended 31 March 2016

Dther Fund
General Fund Balancesand  Caphtal Recelpts Total Usable  Total Unusable: Total Councit
Surnrmacy Reserves| ‘Reserve Reserves Reserves ‘Reserves
£ i 5 E E £ £

Balance as at 1 April 2014 - - y

Movement In reserves during
the year

Surplus/ (Deficit) on the

provision of services (7,643) > " (7.643} . {7,643}

Other Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Total Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure

Adjustments between
accounting basis & funding 7,643 - - 7.643 (7,643)

under regulations

Net decrease before transfers

to Statutory and Dther - - - - {7.643) {7.643)
Reserves

Transfers to / from Statutory
and Other Reserves

{7.643) - s {7,643} - {7.643)

Decrease in year - - - - {7,643) (7,643)

Balance as at 31 March 2015 . . [1,543)
Maovement in reserves during
the year

Note

25 12,134,938 8,035,877 329,166 21,499,981 68,631,713 90,131,654

Opening Balance Movement

SurRi/lIgeRait onity {43,839} : ; {943,339) . {943,839)
provision of services

Other Comprehensive Income : - . : 22,219,883 22,219,883
and Expenditure
Total Comprehensive income 11,191,099 9,035,877 329,166 20,556,142 90,851,596 111,407,738
and Expenditure

Adjustments between

accounting basls & funding 4,378,230 - 92,528 4,470,758 4.470,758)

under regulations

Net increase before transfers

to Statutory and Other 15,569,329 9,035,877 421,694 25,026,900 86,380,838 111,407,738
Reserves

Transfers to / from Statutory
and Other Reserves 1,180,883 (1,180,883] ) - -

Increase in year 16,750,212 7,854,994 421,694 25,026,900 86,380,838 111,407,738

Balance a3 at 31 March 2016 16,750,212 1.6854,9%4 421,694 25,026,500 £6,380,E38 111,407,738
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Armagh City Banbridge and
Craigavon Borough Couneil
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for the year ended 31 March 2016

1,315,342

{1,307,699)

11,307 655}

Service Expenditure Motes £ £ : £
IO S 2 35,168,305 (8.291,245) 26,877.060
Services

Environmental Services 2 29,076,647 (3,878,965} 25,197,682
Planning and Development 2 10,927,713 (5,122,812) 5,804,901
Services

Highways and Transport 2 516,534 {789,122) {272.588)
Services

DRM and Corporate 2 5,685,084 {132,415) 5,553,569
Management

Other Services H 2,846,639 {971,092) 1,875,547
Cast of»Semu:s o Cantinuing (19,185,651} £5.035,171
QOperations

Other Operating Expenditure 7 7,528 [7.528)
Financing and investment a 3,896,804 144,655 3,752,149

Income and Expenditure

Surplus or Deficit on
Discontinued Operations

Net Operating Expenditure BB,11B,626

Taxation and Non-Specific
Grant Income

Surplusf{Deficit} on the

B8,118,626
Provisicn of Services :

(19,337,834} GE, 720,792

(67,836,953) (67,836,953}

{87,174,787) {943,834

1,715,342

(1,307,539

Surplus/{Deficit) on revaluation
of non-current assets

Surplus/{Deficit) arising on
revaluation of available-for-sale 26
financial assets

Remeasurements of the Net
Defined Benefit Liabllity {Asset}

5,829,695

12,390,188

Other Comprehensive (ncome and Expendl|ture 22,219,883 -

Total Comprebensive incame and Expenditure

21,276,044



Armagh City Banbridge and Cralgavon Borough Council
Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2016

kst Barch 2015

31st

March 2016

SR B i T P BRI Tl L R £ S v e S s W R A ..__._'.__.E..._.\__ o ___...E
Fixed Assets 11 187,818,881 627,719
Long Term Investments 16 = =
Investment in Associates and

Joint Ventures )

Long Term Cebtors 15 1,843,184

LONG TERM ASSETS

Short Term Investments 16 -

Inventories 14 430,265 +
Short Term Debiors 15 7.137,083 947,758
Cash and Cash Equivalents 26b 6,872,607 -
Assets Held for Sale 1 - -
CURRENT ASSETS

Bank Overdraft . -
Short Term Borrowing 17 2,200,422 -
Short Term Creditors 18 9,131,092 1,583,121
Provisions 19 472,436 -

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Long Term Creditors 18 -

Provisions 13 3,329,801

Long Term Borrowing 17 45,065,580

Other Long Term Liabilities 5,21 32,490,550

Donated Assets Account 22 .

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance 23

LONG TERM LIABILITIES 30.890,131

NET ASSETS 111,407,738

USABLE RESERVES

Capital Receipts Reserve 27 421,694

Capital Grants Unapplied Account 27 -

Capital Fund 27 4,074,097

Renewal and Repairs Fund 27 150,298

Dther Balances and Reserves 27 3,630,599

General Fund 7 16,750,212
L GDES0
UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account 28 68,037,286

Financlal Instruments Adjustment Atcount 28 -

Revaluation Reserve 28 51,325,234

Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 28 .

Penslons Reserve 28 (32,486,000}

Capital Receipts Deferred Account 28 . -
Accumulated Absences Account 28 [495,682) {7.643)
Landfill Regulatlons Reserve 18 2 g
Provislons Discount Rate Reserve 28 -

86,380,838 [2.643)

NET WORTH 111,407,738 {7,643}



Armagh City Banbridge and Craigaven Borough Council
Cash Flow Statement at 31 March 2016

Note 2015/16 2014715

] j £ £
Net Deficit on the provision of services {543,839} (7,643)
Adjustment for non-cash movements 26 10,264,915 635,362
Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision of services 26 (3.435.301) B

that are investing and financing activities

Het cash flows from operating activities 2E 627,719
Net Cash flows from Investing Activities 6 (6,497,857) {627,719)
Net Cash flows from Financing Activitles 6 {2,384,396)

Net increase or decrease in cash and cash equivalents {2,996,478) -

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the reporting period

h and cash ival thy I I f
Cash and cash equivalents and other opening balance movements transferred 2 9,869,085
from legacy councils

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the reporting period 6,872,607 .



Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Accounting Policies

General Principles

The Statement of Accounts summarises the Council’s transactions for the 2015/16 financial year and
its position at the year-end of 31 March 2016. The Council is required to prepare an annual
Statement of Accounts in a form directed by the Departiment for Communities (formerly Department
for Communities (formerly Department of the Environment)} in accordance with regulations 3 (7) and
(8) in the Local Government (Accounts and Audit) Regulations {Northern Ireland) 2015 in accordance
with proper accounting practices.

These practices primarily comprise the Code of Practice on Local Authority Accounting in the United
Kingdom 2015/16 and the Service Reporting Code of Practice 2015/16 (SeRCOP), supported by
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS}). The accounting convention adopted in the
Statement of Accounts is principally historical cost, modified by the revaluation of certain categories
of non-current assets and financial instruments.

The Code of Practice on Local Autharity Accounting in the United Kingdom 2015/16 also requires
disclosure in respect of:

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Accruals of Income and Expenditure

- Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the Council transfers the significant risks and
rewards of ownership to the purchaser and it is probable that economic benefits or service potential
associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Revenue from the provision of services is recognised when the Council can measure reliably the
percentage of completion of the transaction and it is probable that economic benefits or service
potential associated with the transaction will flow to the Council.

- Supplies are recorded as expenditure when they are consumed — where there is a gap between the
date supplies are received and their consumption, they are carried as inventories on the Balance
Sheet.

- Expenses in relation to services received (including services provided by employees) are recorded as
expenditure when the services are received rather than when payments are made.

- Interest payable on borrowings and receivable on investments is accounted for on the basis of the
effective interest rate for the relevant financial instrument rather than the cash flows fixed or
determined by the contract.

- Where revenue and expenditure have been recognised but cash has not been received or paid, a
debtor or creditor for the relevant amount is recorded in the Balance Sheet. Where it is doubtful that
debts will be settled, the balance of debtors is written down and a charge made to revenue for the
income that might not be collected.
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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

Acquisitions

On 1 April 2015 Car Parking, Museum and Planning functions and their associated assets were
transferred from Central Government to the Council.

Provision for Single Status, Job Evaluation and Pay and Grading Reviews

The Council has made a provision for the costs of settling claims for back pay arising from
discriminatory payments incurred before the Council implemented its Single Status Policy.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash is represented by cash in hand and deposits with financial institutions repayable without
penalty on notice of not more than 24 hours. Cash equivalents are investments that mature in 3
months or less from the date of acquisition and that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash with insignificant risk of change in value. In the Cash Flow Statement, cash and cash equivalents
are shown net of bank overdrafts that are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Council’s cash management.

Contingent Assets

A contingent asset arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible asset
whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future events not
wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent assets are not recognised in the Balance Sheet
but disclosed in a note to the accounts where it is probable that there will be an inflow of economic
benefits or service potential.

Contingent Liabilities

A contingent liability arises where an event has taken place that gives the Council a possible
obligation whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or otherwise of uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Council. Contingent liabilities also arise in circumstances
where a provision would otherwise be mada but either it is not probable that an outflow of resources
will be required or the amount of the obligation cannot be measured reliably. Contingent liabilities

are not recognised in the Balance Sheet but disclosed in a note to the accounts.

Discontinued Operations

No major discontinued operations to note.
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Employee Benefits

Short-term employee benefits are those due to be settled within 12 months of the year-end. They
include such benefits as wages and salaries, paid annual leave and paid sick leave and bonuses, and
are recognised as an expense in the year in which employees render service to the Council. An
accrual is made for the cost of holiday entitlements earned by employees but not taken before the
year-end and which employees can carry forward into the next financial year.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are amounts payable as a result of a decision by the Council to terminate an
officer’'s employment before the normal retirement date or an officer’s decision to accept voluntary
redundancy and are charged on an accruals basis to the Non Distributed Costs line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement at the earlier of:

a) when the offer cannot be withdrawn or

b) when the related restructuring costs are incurred.

Where termination benefits involve the enhancement of pensions, statutory provisions require the
General Fund balance to be charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or
pensioner in the year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In
the Movement in Reserves Statement, appropriations are required to and from the Pensions Reserve
to remove the notional debits and credits for pension enhancement termination benefits and replace
them with debits for the cash paid to the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts
payable but unpaid at the year-end.

Post Employment Benefits

Employees of the Council are members of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension
Fund administered by the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Superannuation Committee,
The scheme provides defined benefits to members {retirement lump sums and pensions), earned as
employees worked for the Council.

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund

The Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund is accounted for as a defined benefits
scheme.

The liabilities of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' Pension Fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet on an actuarial basis using the projected unit method - i.e.
an assessment of the future payments that will be made in relation to retirement benefits earned to
date by employees, based on assumptions about mortality rates, employee turnover rates, etc, and
projections of projected earnings for current employees.

Liabilities are discounted to their value at current prices, using a discount rate of 3.2% (based on the
indicative rate of return on high quality corporate bonds on the iBoxx Sterling Corporate Index, AA
over 15 years with recently re-rated bonds removed from the index.
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The assets of the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ pension fund attributable to the
Council are included in the Balance Sheet at their fair value:

. quoted securities — current bid price
unquoted securities — professional estimate
property — market value
unitised securities — current bid price

The change in the net pensions liability is analysed into seven components:

Within the Cost of Services.

Current Service Cost — the increase in the present value of the defined benefit obligation {liabilities)
resulting from employee service in the current period.

Past Service Cost — (where applicable) the change in the present value of the defined benefit
obligation for employee service in prior periods, resulting from a plan amendment (the introduction
or withdrawl of, or changes to, a defined benefit plan} or a curtailment {a significant reduction in the
number of employees covered by the plan).

Any Gains or Losses on Settlement — {(where applicable) arising where a council enters into a
transaction that eliminates all further legal or constructive obligations for part or all of the benefits
provided under a defined benefit plan.

Within Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability (Asset} ~ the change in the net defined benefit
liability {asset]) that arises from the passage of time.

Within Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure (Remeasurements)

The Return on Plan Assets — excluding amounts recognised in the Net Interest on the Net Defined
Benefit Liability (Asset). This includes interest, dividends and other income derived from the plan
assets, together with realised and unrealised gains or losses on the plan assets, less any costs of
managing plan assets, and any tax payable by the plan itself other than tax included in the actuarial
assumptions used to measure the present value of the defined benefit obligation.

Actuarial Gains and Losses — changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from: a) experience adjustments {the effects of differences between the previous actuarial

assumptions and what has actually occurred) and b) the effects of changes in actuarial assumptions.

Any change in the Effect of the Asset Ceiling — (where applicable) excluding amounts included in the
Net Interest on the Net Defined Benefit Liability {Asset).
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Within the Movement in Reserves Statement Appropriations

Contributions by Scheme Participants — the increase in scheme liabilities and assets due to payments
into the scheme by employees {(where increased contribution increases pension due to the employee
in the future),

Contributions by the Employer - the increase in scheme assets due to payments into the scheme by
the employer.

In relation to retirement benefits, statutory provisions require the General Fund balance to be
charged with the amount payable by the Council to the pension fund or directly to pensioners in the
year, not the amount calculated according to the relevant accounting standards. In the Movement in
Reserves Statement, appropriations are made to and from the Pensions Reserve to remove the
notional debits and credits for retirement benefits and replace them with debits for the cash paid to
the pension fund and pensioners and any such amounts payable but unpaid at the year-end. The
negative balance that arises on the Pensions Reserve thereby measures the beneficial impact to the
General Fund of being required to account for retirement benefits on the basis of cash flows rather
than as benefits are earned by employees.

Discretionary Benefits

The Council also has restricted powers to make discretionary awards of retirement benefits in the
event of early retirements. Any liabilities estimated to arise as a result of an award to any member of
staff are accrued in the year of the decision to make the award and accounted for using the same
policies that are applied to the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers' pension fund.

Events After the Balance Sheet Date
Events after the balance sheet date are those events, both favourable and unfavourable, that occur
between the end of the reporting period and the date when the Statement of Accounts is authorised

for issue, Two types of events can be identified:

a. those that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the end of the reporting period - the
Statement of Accounts is adjusted to reflect such events

b. those that are indicative of conditions that arose after the reporting period — the Statement of

Accounts is not adjusted to reflect such events, but where a category of events would have a material
effect disclosure is made in the notes of the nature of the events and their estimated financial effect.
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The financial statements may subseguently be adjusted up to the date when they are authorised for
issue. This date will be recorded on the financial statements and is usually the date the Local
Government Auditor issues her certificate and opinion. Where material adjustments are made in this
period they will be disclosed.

Events taking place after the date of authorisation for issue are not reflected in the Statement of
Accounts.

Exceptional Items

When items of income and expense are material, their nature and amount is disclosed separately,
either on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement or in the notes to the
accounts, depending on how significant the items are to an understanding of the Council’s financial
performance.

Prior Period Adjustments, Changes in Accounting Policies and Estimates and Errors

Prior period adjustments may arise as a result of a change in accounting policies or to correct a
material error. Changes in accounting estimates are accounted for prospectively, i.e., in the current
and future years affected by the change and do not give rise to a prior period adjustment.

Changes in accounting policies are only made when required by proper accounting practices or the
change provides more reliable or relevant information about the effect of transactions, other events
and conditions on the Council’s financial position or financial performance. Where a change is made,
it is applied retrospectively by adjusting opening balances and comparative amounts for the prior
period as if the new policy had always been applied.

Material errors discovered in prior period figures are corrected retrospectively by amending opening
balances and comparative amounts for the prior period.

Financial Instruments

Most financial instruments held by Councils would fall to be classified into just one class of financial
liability and two classes of financial assets;

Financial Liabilities
Amortised Cost

Financial Assets

Loans and Receivables
Available for Sale
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Financial liabilities are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value and are
carried at their amortised cost. Annual charges to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest payable are
based on the carrying amount of the liability, multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash
payments over the life of the instrument to the amount at which it was originally recognised.

For most of the borrowings that the Council has, this means that the amount presented in the
Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal repayable (plus accrued interest); and interest charged to
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount payable for the year according
to the loan agreement.

Gains and losses on the repurchase or early settlement of borrowing are credited and debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure ling in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement in the year of repurchase/settlement. However, where repurchase has taken
place as part of a restructuring of the l[oan portfolio that involves the modification or exchange of
existing instruments, the premium or discount is respectively deducted from or added to the
amortised cost of the new or modified loan and the write-down to the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement is spread over the life of the loan by an adjustment to the effective interest
rate.

Where premiums and discounts have been charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement, regulations allow the impact on the General Fund Balance to be spread over future years.
The Council has a policy of spreading the gain or loss over the term that was remaining on the loan
against which the premium was payable or discount receivable when it was repaid. The
reconciliation of amounts charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement to the
net charge required against the District Fund Balance is managed by a transfer to or from the
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

Financial Assets
Financial assets are classified into two types:

a. loans and receivables - assets that have fixed or determinable payments but are not quoted in an
active market

b. available-for-sale assets — that have a quoted market price and/or do not have fixed or
determinable payments.
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Loans and Receivables

Loans and receivables are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured at fair value. They are then
measured at their amortised cost. Annual credits to the Financing and Investment Income and
Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement for interest receivable are
based on the carrying amount of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of interest for the
instrument. For most of the loans that the Council has made, this means that the amount presented
in the Balance Sheet is the outstanding principal receivable {plus accrued interest} and interest
credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is the amount receivable for the
year in the loan agreement.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made, the asset is written down and a charge made to
the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. The impairment loss is measured as the difference between the carrying
amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s original
effective interest rate.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of an asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement.

Available-for-Sale Assets

Available-for-sale assets are recognised on the Balance Sheet when the Council becomes a party to
the contractual provisions of a financial instrument and are initially measured and carried at fair
value. Where the asset has fixed or determinable payments, annual credits to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement
for interest receivable are based on the amortised cost of the asset multiplied by the effective rate of
interest for the instrument, Where there are no fixed or determinable payments, income (e.g.,
dividends) is credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement when it becomes
receivable by the Council.
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Assets are maintained in the Balance Sheet at fair value. Values are based on the following
principles:

a. instruments with quoted market prices — the market price
b. other instruments with fixed and determinable payments — discounted cash flow analysis

c. equity shares with no quoted market prices — independent appraisal of company valuations.

The inputs to the measurement techniques are categorised in accordance with the following three
levels:

» Level 1 inputs - quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets that the authority
can access at the measurement date.

» Level 2 inputs - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the
asset, either directly or indirectly.

» Level 3 inputs - unobservable inputs for the asset.

Changes in fair value are balanced by an entry in the Available-for-Sale Reserve and the gain/loss is
recognised in the Surplus or Deficit on Revaluation of Available-for -Sale Financial Assets. The
exception is where impairment losses have been incurred — these are debited to the Financing and
Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement,
along with any net gain or loss for the asset accumulated in the Available-for-Sale Reserve.

Where assets are identified as impaired because of a likelihood arising from a past event that
payments due under the contract will not be made (fixed or determinable payments} or fair value
falls below cost, the asset is written down and a charge made to the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, If the asset
has fixed or determinable payments, the impairment loss is measured as the difference between the
carrying amount and the present value of the revised future cash flows discounted at the asset’s
original effective interest rate. Otherwise, the impairment loss is measured as any shortfall of fair
value against the acquisition cost of the instrument {net of any principal repayment and
amortisation}.

Any gains and losses that arise on the de-recognition of the asset are credited or debited to the
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive income and
Expenditure Statement, along with any accumulated gains or losses previously recognised in the
Available-for-5ale Reserve.

Where fair value cannot be measured reliably, the instrument is carried at cost {less any impairment
losses).
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The Council entered into a number of financial guarantees that are not required to be accounted for
as financial instruments. These guarantees are reflected in the Statement of Accounts to the extent
that provisions might be required or a contingent liability note is needed under the policies set out in
the sections on Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

Foreign Currency Translation

Where the Council has entered into a transaction denominated in a foreign currency, the transaction
is converted into sterling at the exchange rate applicable on the date the transaction was effective.
Where amounts in foreign currency are outstanding at the year-end, they are reconverted at the spot
exchange rate at 31 March. Resulting gains or losses are recognised in the Financing and Investment
Income and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Government Grants and Contributions

Whether paid on account, by instalments or in arrears, government grants and third party
contributions and donations are recognised as due to the Council when there is reasonable assurance
that:

a. the Council will comply with the conditions attached to the payments, and
b. the grants or contributions will be received.

Amounts recognised as due are not credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement until conditions attaching to the grant or contribution have been satisfied. Conditions are
stipulations that specify that the future economic benefits or service potential embodied in the asset
acquired using the grant or contribution are required to be consumed by the recipient as specified or
future economic benefits or service potential must be returned to the transferor.

Monies advanced as grants and contributions for which conditions have not been satisfied are carried
in the Balance Sheet as creditors. When conditions are satisfied, the grant or contribution is credited
to the relevant service line {attributable revenue grants and contributions) or Taxation and Non-
Specific Grant Income (non-ring-fenced revenue grants and all capital grants) in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where capital grants are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they
are reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the
grant has yet to be used to finance capital expenditure, it is posted to the Capital Grants Unapplied
Reserve. Where it has been applied, it is posted to the Capital Adjustment Account. Amounts in the
Capital Grants Unapplied Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment Account once they have
been applied to fund capital expenditure.
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Intangible Assets

Expenditure on non-monetary assets that do not have physical substance but are controlled by the
Council as a result of past events (e.g. software licences) is capitalised when it is expected that future
economic benefits or service potential will flow from the intangible asset to the Council.

Internally generated assets are capitalised where it is demonstrable that the project is technically
feasible and is intended to be completed (with adequate resources being available) and the Council
will be able to generate future economic benefits or deliver service potential by being able to sell or
use the asset. Expenditure is capitalised where it can be measured reliably as attributable to the
asset and restricted to that incurred during the development phase (research expenditure is not
capitalised).

Expenditure on the development of websites is not capitalised if the website is solely or primarily
intended to promote or advertise the Council’s goods or services.

Intangible assets are measured initially at cost. Amounts are only revalued where the fair value of
the assets held by the Council can be determined by reference to an active market. In practice, no
intangible asset held by the Council meets this criterion, and they are therefore carried at amortised
cost. The depreciable amount of an intangible asset is amortised over its useful life to the relevant
service line(s) in Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. An asset is tested for impairment whenever there is an indication that the
asset might be impaired — any losses recognised are posted to the relevant service line(s) in Cost of
Services on Continuing Operations in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or abandonment of an intangible asset is posted to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where expenditure on intangible assets qualifies as capital expenditure for statutory purposes,
amortisation, impairment losses and disposal gains and losses are not permitted to have an impact
on the General Fund Balance. The gains and losses are therefore reversed out of the District Fund
Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and
(for any sale proceeds greater than £5k) the Capital Receipts Reserve.

Inventories & Long Term Contracts

Inventories are included in the Balance Sheet at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The cost
of inventories is assigned using the FIFO costing formula.

Long Term contracts are accounted for on the basis of charging the surplus or deficit on the provision
of services with the value of works and services received under the contract during the financial year.

Investment Property

Investment properties are those that are used solely to earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

The definition is not met if the property is used in any way to facilitate the delivery of services or
production of goods or is held for sale.
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Investment properties are measured initially at cost and subsequently at fair value, based on the
amount at which the asset could be exchanged between knowledgeable parties at arm’s length.
Investment properties are not depreciated but are revalued annually according to market conditions
at the year-end. Gains and losses on revaluation are posted to the Financing and Investment Income
and Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The same treatment
is applied to gains and losses on disposal.

Rentals received in relation to investment properties are credited to the Financing and Investment
Income line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and result in a gain for the
General Fund Balance. However, revaluation and disposal gains and losses are not permitted by
statutory arrangements to have an impact on the District Fund Balance. The gains and losses are
therefore reversed out of the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement and
posted to the Capital Adjustment Account and the Capital Receipts Reserve,

Landfill Allowance Scheme

The Landfill Allowances Scheme operates under the Landfill Allowances Scheme {Northern Ireland)
Regulations 2005. Local Authorities are allocated annual target figures for the maximum amount of
biodegradable municipal waste that can be sent to landfill but there are no tradable allowances. Itis
not a ‘cap and trade’ scheme since landfill allowances are not tradable. For this reason, landfill
allowances are not recognised as assets on the Balance Sheet.

Leases

Leases are classified as finance leases where the terms of the lease transfer substantially all the risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of the property from the lessor to the lessee. All other leases
are classified as operating leases.

Where a lease covers both land and buildings, the land and buildings elements are considered
separately for classification.

Arrangements that do not have the legal status of a lease but convey a right to use an asset in return
for payment are accounted for under this policy where fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of specific assets.

The Council as Lessee - Finance Lease

Property, plant and equipment held under finance leases is recognised on the Balance Sheet at the
commencement of the lease at its fair value measured at the lease’s inception {or the present value
of the minimum lease payments, if lower). The asset recognised is matched by a liability for the
obligation to pay the lessor. Initial direct costs of the Council are added to the carrying amount of
the asset. Premiums paid on entry into a lease are applied to writing down the lease liability.
Contingent rents are charged as expenses in the periods in which they are incurred.
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Lease payments are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease
liability, and

b. a finance charge (debited to the Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement)

Property, Plant and Equipment recognised under finance leases is accounted for using the policies
applied generally to such assets, subject to depreciation being charged over the lease term if this is
shorter than the asset’s estimated useful life.

The Council is not required to raise district rates to cover depreciation or revaluation and impairment
losses arising on leased assets. Instead, a prudent annual provision is made from revenue towards
the deemed capital investment in accordance with statutory requirements. Depreciation and
impairment losses are therefore replaced by a revenue provision in the General Fund Balance, by way
of an adjusting transaction with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement for the difference between the two.

Operating Leases:

Rentals paid under operating leases are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement as an expense of the services benefiting from use of the leased property, plant or
equipment. Charges are made on a straight-line basis over the life of the lease, even if this does not
match the pattern of payments {e.g., there is a rent-free period at the commencement of the lease}.

The Council as Lessor - Finance Lease

Where the Council grants a finance lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
relevant asset is written out of the Balance Sheet as a disposal. At the commencement of the lease,
the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance Sheet {whether Property, Plant and Equipment or
Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive
Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the gain or loss on disposal. A gain, representing the
Council's net investment in the lease, is credited to the same line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal {i.e. netted off against the carrying
value of the asset at the time of disposal), matched by a [ease asset {long term debtor) in the Balance
Sheet.

Lease rentals receivable are apportioned between:

a. a charge for the acquisition of the interest in the property — applied to write down the lease asset
{long term debtor) together with any premiums received, and

b. finance income (credited to the Financing and Investment income and Expenditure line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement).
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The gain credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement on disposal is not
permitted by statute to increase the General Fund Balance and will be required to be treated as a
capital receipt. Where a premium has been received, this is posted out of the General Fund Balance
to the Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in Reserves Statement. Where the amount due in
relation to the [ease asset is to be settled by the payment of rentals in future financial years, this is
posted out of the General Fund Balance to the Deferred Capital Receipts Reserve in the Movement in
Reserves Statement. When the future rentals are paid, the element for the charge for the acquisition
of the interest in the property is used to write down the lease asset (debtor). At this point, the
deferred capital receipts are transferred to the Capital Receipts Reserve.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against council tax, as the cost of fixed assets is fully
provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are therefore appropriated
to the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

The Council as Lessor - Operating Lease

Where the Council grants an operating lease over a property or an item of plant or equipment, the
asset is retained in the Balance Sheet. Rental income is credited to the Other Operating Expenditure
line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. Credits are made on a straight-line
basis over the life of the iease, even if this does not match the pattern of payments (e.g., there is a
premium paid at the commencement of the lease}. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging the lease are added to the carrying amount of the relevant asset and charged as an
expense over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Disposals and Non-Current Assets Held for Sale

When it becomes probable that the carrying amount of an asset will be recovered principally through
a sale transaction rather than through its continuing use, it is reclassified as an Asset Held for Sale.
The asset is revalued immediately before reclassification and then carried at the lower of this amount
and fair value less costs to sell. Where there is a subsequent decrease to fair value less costs to sell,
the loss is posted to the Other Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement. Gains in fair value are recognised only up to the amount of any previously
recognised losses. Depreciation is not charged on Assets Held for Sale.

If assets no longer meet the criteria to be classified as Held for Sale, they are reclassified back to non-
current assets and valued at the lower of its carrying amount before they were classified as Held for
Sale: adjusted for depreciation, amortisation or revaluations that would have heen recognised had
they not been classified as Held for Sale, and their recoverable amount at the date of the decision not
to sell.

Assets that are to be decommissioned i.e. abandoned or scrapped are not reclassified as Assets Held
for Sale.
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When an asset is disposed of, or decommissioned, the carrying amount of the asset in the Balance
Sheet {whether Property, Plant and Equipment or Assets Held for Sale) is written off to the Other
Operating Expenditure line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the
gain or loss on disposal. Receipts from disposals (if any)} are credited to the same line in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement also as part of the gain or loss on disposal {i.e.
netted off against the carrying value of the asset at the time of disposal). Any revaluation gains
accumulated for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve are transferred to the Capital Adjustment
Account.

Amounts received for a disposal are categorised as capital receipts and credited to the Capital
Receipts Reserve. Receipts are appropriated to the Reserve from the General Fund Balance in the
Movement in Reserves Statement.

The written-off value of disposals is not a charge against district rates, as the cost of fixed assets is
fully provided for under separate arrangements for capital financing. Amounts are appropriated to
the Capital Adjustment Account from the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Overheads and Support Services

The costs of overheads and support services are charged to those that benefit from the supply or
service in accordance with the costing principles of the CIPFA Service Reporting Code of Practice
2015/16 (SeRCOP). The total absorption costing principle is used - the full cost of overheads and
support services are shared between users in proportion to the benefits received, with the exception
of:

a. Corporate and Democratic Core — costs relating to the Council’s status as a multi-functional,
democratic organisation.

b. Non Distributed Costs — the cost of discretionary benefits awarded to employees retiring early and
any depreciation and impairment losses chargeable on non-operational properties.

These two cost categories are defined in SeRCOP and accounted for as separate headings in the

Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement , as part of Net Expenditure on Continuing
Services.

Fixed Assets
Assets that have physical substance and are held for use in the production or supply of goods or

services, for rental to others or for administrative purposes and that are expected to be used during
more than one financial year are classified as Fixed Assets.
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Recognition

Expenditure on the acquisition, creation or enhancement of Fixed Assets is capitalised on an accruals
basis, provided that it is probable that the future economic benefits or service potential associated
with the item will flow to the Council and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. Expenditure
that maintains but does not add to an asset’s potential to deliver future economic benefits or service
potential (i.e., repairs and maintenance) is charged as an expense when it is incurred.

Measurement

Assets are initially measured at cost, comprising:

a. the purchase price;

b. any costs attributable to bringing the asset to the location and condition necessary for it to be
capable of operating in the manner intended by management;

c. the initial estimate of the costs of dismantling and removing the item and restoring the site on
which it is located.

The Council does not capitalise borrowing costs incurred whilst assets are under construction,

The cost of assets acquired other than by purchase is deemed to be its fair value, unless the
acquisition will not increase the cash flows of the Council. In the latter case, where the asset is
acquired via an exchange, the cost of the acquisition is the carrying amount of the asset given up by
the Council.

Donated assets are measured initially at fair vatue. The difference between fair value and any
consideration paid is credited to the Taxation and Non-Specific Grant Income line of the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, unless the donation has been made
conditionally. Until conditions are satisfied, the gain is held in the Donated Assets Account. Where
gains are credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, they are reversed out
of the General Fund Balance to the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves
Statement.

Assets are then carried in the Balance Sheet using the following measurement bases:

- infrastructure, community assets and assets under construction - depreciated historical cost;
- all other assets — fair value, determined as the amount that would be paid for the asset in its
existing use {existing use value — EUV).

Where there is no market-based evidence of fair value because of the specialist nature of an asset,
depreciated replacement cost is used as an estimate of fair value.

Assets included in the Balance Sheet at fair value are revalued sufficiently regularly to ensure that
their carrying amount is not materially different from their fair value at the year-end, but as a
minimum every five years. Increases in valuations are matched by credits to the Revaluation Reserve
to recognise unrealised gains. Exceptionally, gains might be credited to the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement where they arise from the reversal of a loss previously charged to a
service,
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The Revaluation Reserve contains revaluation gains recognised since 1 April 2008 only, the date of its
formal implementation. Gains arising before that date have been consolidated into the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Impairment

Assets are assessed at each year-end as to whether there is any indication that an asset may be
impaired. Where indications exist and any possible differences are estimated to be material, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated and, where this is less than the carrying amount of the
asset, an impairment loss is recognised for the shortfall.

Where impairment losses are identified, they are accounted for by:

a. where there is a balance of revaluation gains for the asset in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying
amount of the asset is written down against that balance {up to the amount of the accumulated
gains), with any excess charged to the service line in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement.

b. where there is no balance in the Revaluation Reserve, the carrying amount of the asset is written
down against the relevant service line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement.

Where an impairment loss is reversed subsequently, the reversal is credited to the relevant service
line(s) in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, up to the amount of the original
loss, adjusted for depreciation that would have been charged if the loss had not been recognised.

The same accounting treatment is applied to revaluation losses as a result of a general fall in asset
prices across the board as opposed to a consumption of economic benefit specific to an asset as is in
the case of impairment losses.

Depreciation

Depreciation is provided for on all fixed assets by the systematic allocation of their depreciable
amounts over their useful lives. An exception is made for assets without a determinable finite useful
life (i.e., freehold land and certain Community Assets) and assets that are not yet available for use
(i.e., assets under construction).

Deprecation is calculated on the following bases:

- vehicles, plant and equipment and ICT — a percentage of the value of each class of assets in the
Balance Sheet, as advised by a suitably qualified officer on a straightline basis up to 50 years.

- Buildings & infrastructure — straight-line allocation up to 50 years.

Componentisation

Where an item of fixed asset has major components whose cost is significant in relation to the total
cost of the item, the components are depreciated separately.

Componentisation is only applicable to larger value land and buildings or equipment assets.
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Revaluations

Revaluation gains are also depreciated, with an amount equal to the difference between current
value depreciation charged on assets and the depreciation that would have been chargeable based
on their historical cost being transferred each year from the Revaluation Reserve to the Capital
Adjustment Account.

Heritage Assets

Heritage Assets are assets with historical, artistic, scientific, technological, geophysical or
environmental qualities that are held and maintained principally for their contribution to knowledge
and culture.

Heritage Assets are those assets that are intended to be preserved in trust for future generations
because of their cultural, environmental or historic assoclations. They would be held by this authority
in pursuit of our overall objectives in relation to the maintenance of heritage.

Heritage Assets are recognised and measured (including the treatment of revaluation gains and
losses) in accordance with the Council's accounting policies on fixed assets. However, some of the
measurement rules are relaxed in relation to heritage assets as detailed below. The accounting
policies in relation to heritage assets that are deemed to include elements of intangible heritage
assets are also presented below. The Council's collections of heritage assets are accounted for as
follows.

Ceramics, Porcelain Work and Figurines - The collection of ceramics, porcelain work and figurines
includes tea and dinner services. These items are reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance
valuation which is based on market values. These insurance valuations are updated on a periodic
basis. The ceramics, porcelain work and figurines are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high
residual value; hence the Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. The
collection is relatively static and acquisitions and donations are rare. Where they do occur
acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and donations are recognised at valuation ascertained by
the museum’s curators in accordance with the Council’s policy on valuations of ceramics, porcelain
work and figurines.

Art Collection - The art collection includes bronze art sculptures and statutes, paintings (both oil and
watercolour) and sketches and is reported in the Balance Sheet at insurance value. There is a periodic
programme of valuations and the items in the collection are valued by an external valuer. The assets
within the art collection are deemed to have indeterminate lives and a high residual value; hence the
Council does not consider it appropriate to charge depreciation. Acquisitions are made by purchase
or donation. Acquisitions are initially recognised at cost and donations are recognised at valuation
with valuations provided by the external valuers and with reference to appropriate commercial
markets for the paintings using the most relevant and recent information from sales at auctions.

Machinery, Equipment and other Artefacts from the Pottery Industry - The Council considers that
obtaining valuations for the vast majority of machinery, equipment and other artefacts from the
pottery industry that are exhibited within the museum would involve a disproportionate cost in
comparison to the benefits to the users of the Council's financial statements, This is because of the
diverse nature of the assets held and the lack of comparable values. Other than the small number of
items that have been acquired recently, i.e. those recently bequeathed to the Council, the Councit
does not recognise this collection of heritage assets on the Balance Sheet.
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Archeology - The Council does not consider that reliable cost or valuation information can be
obtained for the items held in its archaeological collection. This is because of the diverse nature of
the assets held and lack of comparable market values. Consequently, the Council does not recognise
these assets on the balance sheet. The Council's acquisitions principally relate to the collection
donated in the early twentieth century. The Authority does not (normally} make any purchases of
archaeological items.

The Heritage asset details are held on a register for insurance purposes. Along with the categories
mentioned above the Council holds various items of jewellery, silverware, furniture and
miscellaneous items such as a book collection. These are held at various museum sites including the
Civic building. The carrying amounts of heritage assets are reviewed where there is evidence of
impairment for heritage assets, eg where an item has suffered physical deterioration or breakage or
where doubts arise as to its authenticity. Any impairment is recognised and measured in accordance
with the Council's general policies on impairment — see note xxii in this summary of significant
accounting policies. The trustees of the Council's Museum will occasionally dispose of heritage assets
which have a doubtful provenance or are unsuitable for public display. The proceeds of such items
are accounted for in accordance with the Council's general provisions relating to the disposal of fixed
assets. Disposal proceeds are disclosed separately in the notes to the financial statements and are
accounted for in accordance with statutory accounting requirements relating to capital expenditure
and capital receipts {again see notes xx and xxii in this summary of significant accounting policies).

Provisions

Provisions are made where an event has taken place that gives the Council a legal or constructive
obligation that probably requires settlement by a transfer of economic benefits or service potential,
and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. For instance, the Council may
be involved in a court case that could eventually result in the making of a settlement or the payment
of compensation.

Provisions are charged as an expense to the appropriate service line in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement in the year that the Council becomes aware of the obligation, and
measured at the best estimate at the balance sheet date of the expenditure required to settle the
obligation, taking into account relevant risks and uncertainties.

When payments are eventually made, they are charged to the provision carried in the Balance Sheet.
Estimated settlements are reviewed at the end of each financial year — where it becomes less than
probable that a transfer of economic benefits will now be required (or a lower settlement than
anticipated is made), the provision is reversed and credited back to the relevant service.

Where some or all of the payment required to settle a provision is expected to be recovered from

another party {e.g. from an insurance claim), this is only recognised as income for the relevant service
if it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the Council settles the obligation.
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Reserves

The Council sets aside specific amounts as reserves for future policy purposes or to cover
contingencies. Reserves are created by appropriating amounts out of the General Fund Balance in
the Movement in Reserves Statement. When expenditure to be financed from a reserve is incurred,
it is charged to the appropriate service in that year against the Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of
Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement. The reserve is then appropriated
back into the General Fund Balance in the Movement in Reserves Statement so that there is no net
charge against District Rates for the expenditure.

Certain reserves are kept to manage the accounting processes for non-current assets, financial
instruments and retirement benefits and do not represent usable resources for the Council — these
reserves are explained in the relevant note to the accounts.

Charges to Revenue for Non-Current Assets

Charges to revenue for non-current assets e.g. services, support services and trading accounts are
debited with the following amounts to record the cost of holding fixed assets during the year:

a. depreciation attributable to the assets used by the relevant service;

b. revaluation and impairment losses on assets used by the service where there are no accumulated
gains in the Revaluation Reserve against which the losses can be written off;

c. amortisation of intangible fixed assets attributable to the service.

The Council is not required to raise District Rates to cover depreciation, revaluation and impairment
losses or amortisations. However, it is required to make an annual provision from revenue to
contribute towards the reduction in its overall borrowing requirement [equal to either an amount
calculated on a prudent basis determined by the Council in accordance with statutory guidance].
Depreciation, revaluation and impairment losses and amortisations are therefore replaced by
minimum revenug provision [MRP] in the General Fund Balance, by way of an adjusting transaction
with the Capital Adjustment Account in the Movement in Reserves Statement for the difference
between the two.

Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute

Expenditure incurred during the year that may be capitalised under statutory provisions but that
does not result in the creation of a non-current asset has been charged as expenditure to the
relevant service in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement in the year. Where the
Council has determined to meet the cost of this expenditure from existing capital resources or by
borrowing, a transfer in the Movement in Reserves Statement from the General Fund Balance to the
Capital Adjustment Account then reverses out the amounts charged, so that there is no impact on
the level of District Rates.

Value Added Tax

All expenditure and income, irrespective of whether it is revenue or capital in nature, is shown net of
Value Added Tax, unless it is irrecoverable.
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The Carbon Reduction Commitment Scheme (CRC)

Due to its low levels of energy consumption, there is no requirement for the Council to submit CRC
returns.

Fair Value Measurement

The Council measures some of its non-financial assets such as surplus assets and investment
properties and some of its financial instruments such as equity shareholdings at fair value at each
reporting date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a
liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair
value measurement assumes that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place
either:

a) in the principal market for the asset or liability, or
b} in the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

The Council measures the fair value of an asset or liability using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in
their economic best interest. When measuring the fair value of a non-financial asset, the authority
takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset in
its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its
highest and best use. The authority uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

Inputs to the valuation techniques in respect of assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured
or disclosed in the authority’s financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, as
follows:

* Level 1 - quoted prices {unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that

the authority can access at the measurement date

* Level 2 - inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for

the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly

* Level 3 - unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.
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Accounting Standards That Have Been Issued but Have Not Yet Been Adopted

Amendments to |AS 19 Employee Benefits (Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions)

In Movember 2013 the IASB issued its amendments to IAS 19. CIPFA/LASAAC considered the options
in the standard for accounting for employee contributions are concluded that if the amount of the
contributions is independent of the years of service a council is permitted to recognise such
contributions as a reduction to service cost in the period in which the related service is rendered. This
is consistent with the approach currently adopted and therefore there will not be any significant
change in accounting practice for the council,

Annual Improvements to IFRS 2010 - 2012 Cycle and 2012 - 2014 Cycle

The IASB carries out cyclical work to identify and implement improvements in IFRS's. The 2010 - 2012
cycle was issued in November 2013 and the 2012 - 2014 cycle was issued in December 2013, These
amendments have not yet been endorsed by the European Union and this endorsement would be
required to be adopted into the Code. There are no significant issues affecting the council emanating
from the annual improvements work.

Amendment to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements (Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests in Joint
Operations)

When the acquisition of an interest in a joint operation in which the joint operation constitutes a
business, as defined by IFRS 3, it shall apply, all of the principles on business combinations accounting
in IFRS 3 and disclose the information required. This is applicable to the acquisition of both the initial
interest and additional interests in a joint operation in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business. The exception of the principles that conflict with guidance in IFRS 11.

Amendment to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment and |AS 38 Intangible Assets (Clarification of
Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation)

These changes apply to local authorities though CIPFA/LASAAC considers that local authorities do not
use the depreciation and amortisation methods prohibited by the amendments to the standard. This
amendment clarifies the treatment as it is the IASB’s view that the restatement of the accumulated
depreciation is not always proportionate to the change in the gross carrying amount. The
amendment sets out that the gross carrying amount is adjusted in a manner that is consistent with
the revaluation of the carrying amount.

Amendment to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements (Disclosure Initiative)

Under the IASB Disclosure Initiative, in December 2014 changes were published on IAS 1 Financial
Statements. The presentation of financial statements has amended the reporting requirements for
the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and Movement in Reserves Statement.
Improvements in the presentation of the financial statements will take effect in 2016/17 Code.
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(i

(i)

Critical Judgements in Applying Accounting Policies

In applying accounting policies set out from la above, Council has not had to make any critical
judgements about complex transactions or those involving uncertainty about future events.

Assumptions Made About the Future and Other Major Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

The Statement of Accounts contains estimated figures that are based an assumptions made by the
Council about the future or that are otherwise uncertain. Estimates are made taking into account
historical experience, current trends and other relevant factors. However, because balances cannot
be determined with certainty, actual results could be materially different from the assumptions and
estimates.

The items in the Council's Balance Sheet at 31 March 2016 for which there is a significant risk of
material adjustment in the forthcoming financial year are as follows:
Fixed Assets

Assets are depreciated over useful lives that are dependent on assumptions about the level of repairs
and maintenance that will be incurred in relation to individual assets,

If the useful life of assets is reduced, depreciation increases and the carrying amount of the assets
falls.

Provisions

The Council has not made a provision for bad debt arising from non-collection of rate income by Land
& Property Services in future years. It is not certain how much uncollected rates will be written off by
LPS in future years. Nor has it made a provision for Equal Pay settlements due to the uncertainty of
the amounts involved.

{iii) Pension Liability

Estimation of the net liability to pay pensions depends on a number of complex judgements relating
to the discount rate used, the rate at which salaries are projected to increase, changes in retirement
ages, mortality rates and expected returns on pension fund assets. A firm of consulting actuaries is
engaged to provide the Council with expert advice about the assumptions to be applied.

{iv} Arrears

A review of significant sundry debtor balances has produced a specific allowance for doubtful debts.
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2  Segmental Reporting
a Segmental Reporting Analysis

The analysis of income and expenditure by service on the face of the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement is
specified by the Service Reporting Code of Practice. The segmental reporting notes within the financial statements are based on the
summary first page of the General Fund — Service Income and Expenditure Analysis in the Department for Communites' {formerly
Department for Communities (formerly Department of the Environment)} Accounts Direction.

The General Fund — Service Income and Expenditure Analysis as presented to the Department for Communities (formerly
Department for Communities {formerly Department of the Environment)] is as follows:

2015, 2014715

Gross ! : Net Gross ' Net

Services Expenditure  Gross income  Expenditure Expenditure Grossincome Expenditure
£ £ el S Y Y s

Culture and Heritage 3,371,676 {677,012) 2,694,664 - - -
Recreation and Sport 24,492,248 (5,317,935) 19,174,313 - - -
Tourism 3,212,060 {903,170) 2,308,850 - - -
Community Services 4,092,321 {1,393,128) 2,699,193 - - -
Leisure and Recreational Services 35,168,305 {8,291,245) 26,877,060
Cemetery, Cremation & Mortuary 750,491 [160,982] 589,509 - - -
Environmental Health 4,355,059 {1,536,720) 2,818,339 - - -
Flood Defence and Land Drainage - - B - - -
Public Conveniences S47,553 (8,852} 538,701 - - -
Licensing 311,693 {100,904} 210,789 . . -
Other Cleaning 2,781,158 {48,066) 2,733,092 - - -
Waste Collection 12,548,111 {1,149,873) 11,398,238 - - -
Waste Disposal 4,176,009 (208,582) 3,967,427 - - -
Other Community Assets 3,333,463 (664,986) 2,668,477 - - -
Minor Works 273,110 - 273,110 - - -
Environmental Services 28,076,647 {2,878,965) 25,197,682
Community Planning 237,418 {97 237,320 - - -
Economic Development 4,330,905 (1,456,457} 2,874,448 - - -
EU Rural Development 376,119 {479,768} {103,649) + - -
Urban Regeneration and Community
Development 1,740,153 {406,828} 1,333,325 - - -
Planning Policy 2,121,566 {1,429,031}) 692,535 . - -
Development Control 66,054 - 66,054 - - -
Building Contral 2,011,097 (1,350,631) 660,466 + + -
Environmental initiatives 44,401 - 44,401 - - -
Planning and Development Services 10,927,713 (5,122,812} 5,804,901
Off-street Parking Services 516,534 {789,122) {272,588} - - -
Highways and Transport Services 516,534 (789,122) {272,388} -

Democratic Representation and

Management 1,598,435 {55,249) 1,503,186 535,108 {464,171) 70,937
Corporate Management 4,087,549 (37,166) 4,050,383 780,234 (843,528} {63,294)
DRM and Corporate Management 5,685,984 (132,415} 5,553,569 1,315,342 (1,307,699} 7,643
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Trading Services 737,712 {306,174) 431,538 - - -
Non Distributed Costs 706,870 - 706,870 - - -
Central Services to the Public 1,402,057 {664,918) 737,139 - - -
Qther Services 2,846,639 {971,092) 1,875,547 - - -

CONTINUING OPERATIONS 84,221,822 (19,185,651} 65,036,171 1,315,342 {1,307,6%9) 7,643

b Reconciliation to Net Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

This reconciliation shows how the figures in the analysis of portfolie income and expenditure relate to the amounts included in the
Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement

2015/16 2015716 2014/15 2014715
Net Cost of Services in Service Analysis 65,036,171 7,643

{tems excluded from Service Analysis:

Add amounts not reported in Service Analysis but included In Net Cost of

Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement - -
Remove amounts reported in Service Analysis but not included in Net

Cost of Services in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure
Statement - -

Cost of Services on Continuing Operations in the

Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement 65,036,171

Items Iincluded in Net Operating Expenditure excluded from Service

Analysis:
Other Operating Expenditure {7,528) -
Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure 3,752,149 -

Surplus or Deficit on Discontinued Operations - -
3,744,621 5

Net Operating Expenditure per the Comprehensive
tncome and Expenditure Statement 68,780,792 7,643
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3 Adjustment between an Accounting Basis and Funding Basis under Regulations
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded when
determining the Movement on the General Fund Balance for the year:

2015/16 2015/16 2014/15 201415
Amounts included in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to be excluded when
determining the Movement on the Genera! Fund Balance for the year:

Impairments (losses & reversals) of non-current assets 11 . -

Derecognition {other than disposal) of non-current

assets 11 - -

Revaluation increases/decreases taken to Surplus/Deficit

on the Provision of Services 11 - -

Depreciation charged in the year on non-current assets 11 9,515,082 9,515,092 - -

Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under . it ]

statute 11 = b I

Carrying amount of non current assets sold 7 85,000 -

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets, investment

property and intangible assets 26 [92,528) (7.528) - -

Difference between finance costs calculated on an

accounting basis and finance costs calculated in

accordance with statutory requirements 26 = C

Net charges made for retirement benefits in accordance

with 1AS 19 21 8,974,000 -

Direct revenue financing of Capital Expenditure ; S [ R
1227 R et

Capital Grants and Donated Assets Receivable and

Applied in year gb (3,342,773) -

Capital Grants Receivable and Unapplied in year
9¢ - -
Adjustments in relation to Short-term compensated
absences 28 37,890
Adjustments in relation to Lessor Arrangements LAl

Landfill Regulations Reserve Adjustment it
28 BT b
Provisions Discount Rate Reserve Adjustment :

Amounts not included in the Comprehensive Income
and Expenditure Statement but required by statute to
be included when determining the Movement on the
General Fund Balance for the year

Statutory Provision for the financing of Capital e 7% 3

Investment 27 (4,684 451) i =
Employers contributions payable to the NILGOSC and
retirement benefits payable direct to pensioners 21 (6,114,000} -

Net Adjustments between Accaunting Basis and

Funding Basis under Regulation 4,378,230
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Net transfers (to)/from statutory and other earmarked

; reserves: 2015/16 2015/16 2014/15 2014115
Capital Fund
Interest - -
From Capital IR r__,_. =
Other 27 - s } e .
Renewal and Repairs Fund

Interest - =

Other 7 S - -

Capital Receipts Reserve

Interest s : T
Gther 27 4 5 -5 - B ey i 5
Other Funds and earmarked reserves

Interest - o

From Other funds BT TRy 5

Other 27 1,180,883 1,180,883 | - -

1,180,833 -

4 Cost of Services on Continuing Operations
@ General Power of Competence

Prior to Local Government Reform on 1st April 2015, expenditure for special purposes was limited under Section 40 of the Local
Government Finance Act {Northern Ireland) 2011. This section was repealed by Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act {Northern
Iretand) 2014,

Under Section 79 of the Local Government Act (Northern Irefand) 2014, the Council has the power to do anything that individuals
generally may do. Councils have the power to do this with or without charge. The power of competence is not limited to
benefitting the area or its residents nor is it limited by existing powers.

The actual expenditure under the power of competence amounted to £4,445 during 2015/16.

LY External Audit Fees

The Council has incurred the following costs relating to the annual audit of the Statement of Accounts, certification of grant claims
and other services provided by the Councils external auditors.

2015/16 2014715

External Audit Fees ..”:- 67,000 6000
Grant Claim Certification Fees [l o ]
Other Fees = |} ]

There were no other fees payable in respect of any other services provided by the appointed auditor over and above those
described above {2014/15 Enil).
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CJ Cperating and Finance teases
Council as Lessor

a Finance Leases (Counci) as lessor)

A P AR TR TR F I AR SR P S PSP NPEH S PRI e —-—-

The Council has leased out property to Banbridge Enterprises Ltd on a finance lease with a remaining term of 92 years,

The present value of lease payments receivable under the finance lease arrangements is recognised as a receivable and included in
both short and long term debtors. The difference between the gross amount receivable and the present value of the amounts
receivable is recognised as unearned finance income.

receivables from finance leases 2015/16 01415

Iﬂ Term Debtors

Finance leases- gross receivables

Less - Unearned finance income

Less - Unguaranteed residual value of property
|Net Present Value

Short Term Debtors

Finance leases- gross receivables

Less - Unearned finance income

Less - Unguaranteed residual value of property
Net Present Value

Gross receivables from finance leases
|No later than 1 year

|I.ater than 1 year and no later than 5 years
[Later than 5 years

Total gross receivables | 120,962 | -
|Less-Unearned future finance income on finance leases - E
[Less-Unguaranteed residual value of property " .
[

[Net investment in finance leases | 120,962 | -
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The net investment in finance leases may be analysed as follows:

| 2015/16 2014/15

{No later than 1 year
|Later than 1 year and no fater than 5 years

T iisg39|

lLater than 5 years
Total gross receivables | 120,962 | -

The unguaranteed residual values of the assets leased under finance leases at the end of the year are estimated at £nil {Previous
year £nil}

The accumulated allowance for uncollectable minimum lease payments receivable is £nil (comparative year £nil)
No contingent rents were recognised as receivable by the Council.

The interest rate inherent in the leases is fixed at the contract date for the entire lease term. The average interest rate contracted is
approximately 0.73% {comparative year 0.73%)

b Operating Leases (Council as lessor)

The Council, in accordance with its statutory and discretionary responsibilities, leases out property and equipment under operating

leases for the following purposes:
- for the pravision of community services, such as sports facilities, tourism services and community centres
- for economic development purposes ta provide suitable affordable accommodation for small local businesses

Rental income recognised in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Staterment in the current year amounts to £94,855. No
contingent rents were recognised.

The lease contracts are all non-cancellable and do not include an extension option. The lease terms are between 1 and 584 years.
Future minimum lease income is set out below:

2015/16 2014/15

Vehicles, Vehicles,

: landand  Plantand landand Plantand
' Buildings Equipment  Buildings Equipment
£ £ it Bt i3]

[Minimum lease rentals receivable:

|No later than 1 year

[Later than 1 year and na later than 5 years
[Later than 5 years
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The assets leased by the Council to third parties are included In the following categories of Property, Plant and Equipment with
carrying values of;

2015/16 2014715

| _ = . e Vehides, - Vehicles,
iandand  Plantand Landand.  Plantand
Suilldings  Equipment Iflu_lldlngg Equipment:

[Cost

Accumulated depreciation and
impairments at 1 April
Depreciation charge for the year
Impairments / Revaluations

6,065,097 c . 5

Council a5 Lessee

¢ Finance Leases (Council as lessee}

A number of Council vehicles are held under finance leases. The assets are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment which form
an integral part of property, plant and equipment (see Note 11g - Leased assets).

Council holds some equipment under Finance Leases. The assets are included under Vehicles, Plant & Equipment which form an
integral part of property, plant and equipment (see note 11g - Leased assets).

No contingent rentals were recognised as an expense in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement during the
reporting period under review, and no future sub-lease income is expected to be received, as all assets are used exclusively by the
council.

The lease agreements for vehicles and equipment include fixed lease payments and a purchase option at the end of the respective
lease terms. The agreements are non-cancellable but do not include any further restrictions.

Future minimum finance lease payments at the end of each reporting period under review are as follows:
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‘Within 1year  1to5years AfterSyears  Total

s £ i .£.'. £ £
2015/16
Finance lgases payments 18,642
Less: finance charges {2,890}
[Net present value | 11,202 | 4,550 | - | 15752
2014/15
Finance leases payments T e -
Less: finance charges i e -
Net present value | - | - - | .

2013/14
Finance leases payments

Less: finance charies

Net present value -
included in the Balance Sheet as: ' 2016 2015 2024

Current liabilities 11,202 - -

Long term liabilities 4,550 - -

Total | 15,752 | - | -

d Operating Leases (Council as lessee)

The Council has acquired its office photocopiers and printers by entering into operating leases with typical lives of between 3 and 5
years.

The lease of land relates mainly to South Lough Neagh Shoreline project that Council is undertaking. The expenditure charged to
services in the Comprehensive Incone & Expenditure Statement during the year in relation to these leases was:

2015/15 2014/15
Vehidles, Vehidles,
Landand  Plantand  landand  Plantand
Bulldings Equipment  Bulidings Equipment

Minimum lease payments
Contingent rentals
Less: Sublease payments receivable

Total

No sub-lease payments or contingent rent payments were made or received. No sublease income Is expected as all assets held
under operating lease agreements are used exclusively by the Council.

The future minimum lease payments due under nan-cancellable operating leases in future years are set out below:
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g o e b T LA 1 e 5 o b e e 3 T T 8 TS L g e e ety = Y Py [T L 1 T [ 1 s e oy e

2015/16 2014/15
‘Vehicles, Vehicles,

landand  Plantand  Llandand  Plantand
Buildings Equipment  Buildings Equipment
£ E L E £

Minimum lease rentals payable:

No later than 1 year

Later than 1 year and no later than 5 years
Later than 5 years

Total | 10,949 | 10,111 | | E

Employee Costs and Member Allowances
EY Staff Costs

[salaries and Wages
[Employers NIC
|Emplovers Superannuation

Total staff costs 38,692,011 323,554
In addition, agency costs during the year amounted to £372,207.

The Council's current contribution rate to NILGOSC scheme is 20%. At the last acturial valuation, dated 31 March 2013, the Fund's
assets as a whole were sufficient to meet 91% of the liabilities accrued up to that date.

Average Number of Employees - where FTE represents fulltime equivalent employees

|-} Average Number of Employees 2015/16 2014/15

|Leisure and Recreation Services
|Environmental Services
|Planning and Development Services

I&hways and Transport Service
Other

Total Number

2015/16 2014/15

Actual Actual.
oAbt ik it Numbers  Numbers:
Full-time numbers employed BT 955! | TR E]
Part-time numbers employed [ || PN

Total Number 1,328 7
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[4 Senior Emplayees’ Remuneration 2015/16 2014/15

E £

£50,001 to £60,000
£60,001 to £70,000
£70,001 to £80,000
£80,001 to £90,0000
£90,001 to £100,000
£100,001 to £110,000
£110,001 to £120,000

Total Number

.} Members' Allowances
2015/16 2014/15

Salaries

Basic allowance

Mavyor's & Deputy Mayor's Allowance
Special Responsibility Allowances
Dependents’ carers allowance
Statutory Transition Committee Allowances
Employer costs

Mileage

Conferences and Courses

Travel & Subsistence Costs
[Miscellanous Costs

Severance Payments

Total 537,230 535,108
e Northern Ireland Civil 5ervice Pension Arrangements

As a result of Reform on 1st April 2015, staff transferred from Central Government to the Council are members of the Northern
Ireland Civil Service Pension Scheme.

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the
Department for Communities (formerly Department of the Environment) is unable to identify its share of the underlying assets and
liabilities. The most up to date actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31/03/2012. This valuation is then reviewed by the Scheme
Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rolled forward to the reporting date of the DFP Superannuation and Other
Allowances Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2016.

For 2015-16, employers’ contributions of £294,453 were payable to the NICS pension arrangements at one of four rates in the
range 20.8% to 22.8% of pensionable pay, based on salary bands. The scheme’s Actuary reviews employer contributions every four
years following a full scheme valuation. A new scheme funding valuation based on data as at 31/03/2012 was completed by the
Actuary during 2014-15. This valuation was used to determine employer contribution rates for the introduction of a new career
average earning scheme from April 2015. For 2016-17, the rates will range from 20.8% to 26.3%. The contribution rates are set to
meet the cost of the benefits accruing during 2015-16 to be paid when the member retires, and not the benefits paid during this
period to existing pensioners.

Current employees can opt to open a partnership pension account, a stakeholder pension with an employer contribution. No
Councit employees currently avail of this scheme and as it is a closed scheme and therefore no new employees are able to join it.

9 employees retired early on ill-health grounds at nil cost to Council.
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As part of the process of establishing opening balances the Actuary has had to rebase the opening liabiliities on a consistent set of

assumptions at 1 April 2015.

7 Other Operating Expenditure

a Surplus/Deficit on Non-Current Assets (excl Investment Properties)

: £ £
Proceeds from sale {92,528) .
Carrying amount of non-current assets
sold {excl Investment Properties) 85,000 -
{7,528) -

b Other Operating Income/Expenditure

' i £ £
Income - .
Expenditure - -

Cther Operating Expenditure

2015/16
£

2014/15

£

{Surplus} / Deficit on Non Current Assets

[7.528)

Other Operating {Income) / Expenditure

Financing and Investment Income and Expenditure

a Interest Payable and Similar Charges

Lease/hire purchase interest 7,792
Bank interest 2,604,012 -
Loan interest e =
|Other interest - -
2,611,804

{7,528
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b Interest and Investment Income

2015/16 2014/15

; £ £
Bank Interest 4,654 -
Employee car loan interest 3,203 -
NIHE Loan interest receivable 136,798 -
|investment income on Fund Bolonces
Capital Fund - -
Repairs & Renewals Fund 5 -
Other Funds - -
Other Investment income - -
144,655 -

¢ Penslions interest costs

2015/16 2014/15

.Net interest on the net defined benefit : )
liability {asset) 1,285,000 -
1,285,000 -
d Surplus/{Deficit) on trading operations
2015/16 2014/15
i £

|In|:ome from trading - 5
[Expenditure - N

(Surplus)/Deficit for the year - -

e Income, Expenditure and changes in Fair Value of Investment Properties

iRr@mim Fonartl A e £

Income including rental income - -
Expenditure - .
De-recognition in relation to amounts
written off - *
Net incorme from investment properties -
Surplus/deficit on sale of Investment

Properties

Proceeds from sale -
Carrying amount of investment

properties sold - -
{Surplus)/deficit on sale of Investment
Properties: - -

m

Changes in Fair Value of Investment
Properties - *
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Financing and investment income and

Expenditure 2015/16 !
[Expenditure  Gross Income Expenditure Expenditure Gross income Expenditure
£ £ £ i £ S B E
Interest Payable and Similar Charges 2,611,804 - 2,611,804 - - -
Interest and Investment Income - 144,655 {144,655) - - -
Pensions interest cost 1,285,000 - 1,285,000 - - -
Surplus/(Deficit) on trading operations . . - - - -
Other investment income . . - - - -
Changes in Fair Value of Investment
Properties - - - - - -
3,896,804 144,655 3,752,149 - - -

9 Taxation and Non Specific Grant Income

a Revenue Grants

2015/16 2014/15

7 . ES R £
General {8,016,955) -
Other - -

{8,016,955) -

b Capital Grants and Donated Assets - Applied

2015/16 2014715

£ £

Government & Other Grants - Conditions
met and applied in year (3,342,773) -
Government & Other Grants - Transfer
from receipts in advance - -
Donated Assets - Conditions met - -
Donated Assets - Transfer from donated
assets creditor - -

{2,342,773) -

¢ Capital Grants - Unapplied

2015/16 2014/15

£

m

Government & Other Grants - Conditions
met and not applied in year -
COther -




Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Barough Council
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d District Rates

2015/16 2014/15

A e e T R e R e EREAE £
Current year {56,477,225) -
Finalisation - previous year - -
Transitional Relief - -
Finalisation - other years - -
(56,477,225) .
District Rate Income {56,477,225) -
Revenue Grants {8,016,955) -
Capital Grants and Contributions {3,342,773) -

{67,836,953)

10  Acquired and Discontinued Operations

Local Government reform was implemented on 1st April 2015, when 11 New Councils took over from the previous 26 Councils.

As a result of reform a number of functions which were previously delivered by NI Executive departments are now carried out by
local councils. These include:
Planning:
- Local development plan functions
- Development control and enforcement
Roads:
- Off-street parking (except Park and Ride)
Local Economic Development:
- Start a Business Programme and Enterprise Shows
- Youth enterpreneurship
- Social enterpreneurship
- Investing for Women
- Neighbourhood renewal funding relating to enterprises initiatives
Local Tourism:
- Small-scale tourism accommodation development
- Providing business support including business start-up advice
- Providing advice to developers on tourism policies and related issues
Heritage:
- Control of alterations, extension and demolition of listed buildings
- Conservation area designation and management
- Listed building enforcement notices
- Compensation where listed building consent has been revoked or modified
- Issuing of Building Perservation Notices
- Issuing notices to require Urgent Works to preserve a building
- Community listing of buildings of special architectural or historic interest
Other Services:
- Some elements of the delivery of the EU Rural Development Programme
- Armagh County Museum
- Local water recreational facilities
- Local sports

As a result of the Geographica! Boundary Change, Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon 8rough Council transferred a number of
Land and Building Assets to Newry, Mourne and Down District Council.
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Armagh City Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financial Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

11 ¢ Intangible Assets

The Council also owns Intang bie Assets which retate solely to market rights. The assets are not amortised

Imlangitde Avsets

lMarkel Tradinl Rlihts

d tnvestment Properties

There were no additions,acquisition or enhanc during the year.

There ware na Reclassifications and Transfers from (nventories during the year,

investment Propertles 31/03/2016 3170372015

|Hem_a_l Income from Investment Activities 255,700 | =
|Direct Operating expensas arising from investment properties (145.348i] =
{Net gain/{loss) | | | | | 106,352 | .

e Heritage Assets

Please refer 1o Disciosures Included at note 1a{xxii)
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f Assets Held for Sale

Mam Currenpd

|5¢m or Valuation
Balance as at 1 Aprll 2015 B, 000 - BS, 000

Adjustments between cost/value & depraciationfimpairment 2 = -
Transferred fram Non-Current Assets during year - o i
Assets Held for Sale Donatiens - - E

|assets Held for 5ale Revaluation increases/decreases to Revalwation Reserve

Revaluation Increases/decreases taken to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services
Assets Held for Sale Impairment @ Cost to Provision of Services 1
Derecognition - Dispasals {B3.0007| - 85,0005
Dargcognition - Dther =

Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale to non current Assets Held for Sale = = -

Balance as at 31 March 2016 . ] 5

|Batance as at 1 April 2015 » - 2
Adjustments batween cost/vaiue & depreciation/impairment a . N
Impairment losses/reversals taken 1o Surpius or Deficit on the Provision of Services - - E:

Rectassified from Current Assets Held for Sale te non current Assets Held for Sale = = =
iferred to Property. Plant & Equipment during year - . .

Balance as at 31 March 2016 . - Fy

Net Book Value
Balance a3 at 31 March 2016

|Balaue 23 at 31 March 2015

Curent

|cost or valuati

Balance as at 1 April 2014 - - .
Adjustments between tost/value & depreciation/impairment - - 3

Transierred from Non-Current Assets durin| year = R =
Assets Held for 5ale Donations - - -

Assets Held for Sale Revaluation mcreases_/de:rease!. o Revaluation Asserve - - =
Revaluation increases/decreases taken to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Services - -
Assets Held for Sale Impairment g Cost to Provision of Services - B =

Derecognition - Disposals - - =
Derecognition - Other - R s

Reclassified from Current Assets Held far Sale to non current Assets Held for Sale
Ptant & Equipment during year - s i

Balance as at 31 March 2015 - - .
Impairment

[Balance as at 1 April 2014 - - P
Adis between cost/value & depreciationfimpairment - - -

Impairment losses/reversals taken to Surplus or Deficit on the Provision of Servites

IDete:Enilion - Dispasals - - -

Derecognition - Other - . -

Reclassified from Current Assets Held for Sale to non current Assets Held for Sale
Transferred to Property, Plant & Equipment during year . . B

|B|lance 85 3t 31 March 2015 - - -

TS
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£ Long-Term Assets - Leased Assets

e _— W

Cost or Valuation

|At 1 April 2015
Additians
|Diswsals

At 31 Marth 2016

Depreciation

At 1 April 2015
Disposals

|Nel Book Value

|Cost or Valuation
At 1 April 2014
Add tions

At 31 March 2015

Deprediation
IAI 1 April 2014

[Disposas

Provided for year

At 31 March 2015 = - .
Net Book Value . - -
{

h Fair Value Hierarchy for Surplus Assets

The Council holds Surplus Assets to the value of approx £2M and a valuation was carried out as at 1 April 2013 by an independent valuer from Land and
Property Service.

12 Capital Expenditure and Capital Financing

NOTE: The total Capital Expenditure inturred in the year {and comparative year] is shown below - including the value of assets acquired under finance
leases and PFI/FPP contracts together with the resources that have been used to finance it. Where Capital Expenditure is 10 be financed in future years
by charges to revenue as assets are used, the expenditure results in an increase in the CFR, a measure of the Capital Expenditure Incurred historically by
the Council that has yet to be financed. The CFR is analysed in the second parnt of this note,

2015/16

Capitat Expendlture 2014/15

|openi g Capital Fi ing Requi i B = wra ikl

Capital Investment

Property, Plant and Equipment 113 9,933,158 627,719 |4 “a i
Investment Properties . = .
Intangible Assats o - -
Revenue Expenditure Funded from Capital under Statute - B -
Invastments | e il w i e M 307

|Sources of Finance

|Eapital Receipts ] T DR R R A
Government Grants and Other Contributions 9 {3,242,773) - o
Transiers from Earmarked Reserves - I e

1Sums set aside from flevenue: ‘L
Direct Revenue Contributi e e e e 1
Minimum Revenue Provision ** TEET] § [ -*11[.'— T ]

£

Increase in underlying need to borrow '

. i e T &
Assets acquired under finance leases P ﬁﬁ—.mw«qﬂ
Assets acquired under PFI/PPP cantracts i T e e | [ T e S ]

incegasef{decrease] in Capital Financing Reguircment 1,805,934 = 3




Armagh Clty Banbridge and Craigavon Borough Council
Notes to the Financlal Statements
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2016

kI Future Capital Commitments

Schemes underway at year-end amounted to £3.436m, and inciude Keady Community Centre (£2.65m) and the new Craigavon Area Leisure Centre
{£0.65m) which is currently at the at the planning and design stage.

LT inventories 2015/16 2014/15
£ £
il and Fuel As5,758 -
Stores 257,645 o
Other Stock 85,852 -
Total 430,265 -

LI Debors
b Long Term Debiors 2015/16

£
|Govemmant bepartments . N
Other Councils - -
Public corporations and trading funds - -
|Bodies external to general government - -
Employee car loans 10,171 -
Revenue Granis E 2
Capital Grants - =
{interest Receivable - 2
Capital Debtors - -
Loans and advances - -
Finance lease debtors - -
Trade debtors = 0
INIHE Loans 1,712,962 -
Other 120,051 .
impairment of (cans and receivables - -
Tatal Long-Term Debiters 1,391,184 "

I'F Short Term Debtors Hns/ie 2084115

[ £

Government Departments 3,872,781 265,013

Other Councils 247,775 682,746

Public corporations and trading funds - -
|Bodies external to general government 189,522 -
|NIHE loans - .
|emplayee car loans 9,569 -
A Grants 76,429 .
Capital Grants - -
|interest Receivable 1.627 -
Capital Debtors - -
Valug Added Tax 914,333 -
|Prepayments 126,727 -
[Finance lease dabtars - -
Other 245,393 -
Trade receivables 1,524,455 -
Impairment loss - Trade receivables {71,528) -

Total Short.-Yerm Debtors 7.137,083 947,759

Total Debtors

The large proportion of the Councli's Debtors relates 1o Government Grants,

§,9B0.267

947,759
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gh Councll

16

17

Investments - general E B

Investments - repairs and renewals - -
Investments - capital fund - -
Investments - other & =

’Mommarkeldenosis T [T
Dlher deposits £y -

Total Long-term: Investments

Investments - general - &,
Investments - repairs and renewals - =
Investments + capital fund = =
Investments - other

Tetal Short-term investments

da 0 b 014

£ £
[Money market deposits m._!' S - J.Mu,
Other deposits v

-I:'-

Total Short term Investments

Total tong Term and Short-term investments - -

Borrowings

E] short Term Borsowing 2015716
£ £
Loans re-payable within one year 2.189,220 -
i nce Lease Principal

_ 11202

02!
Tatal Skart Term Borrowing 2200422

o c u] { b Q
£ £

[Between 1 and 2 years 2,116,089 -
[Between 2 and 5 years 5,091,165 -
|Batween S and 10 years 12,961,170 -

In more than 10 years 24,001,546 -
Analysed over:

Finance Lease Principal 35

Loans 5,000,000

Gaovernment Loans Fund 40,069,945

Tatal Long Term Barrowing

45,069,980

Total Borrowing 47.270.402 -
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Interest rates on Government Loans and LOBO's range between 3% and 11 125%,

18 Heto
a s dito { b 0 D fe
4 £ £
Government Departments 240,477 - -
Other Countils 29,699 1,567,660 -
Public corporations and trading furds - - -
Bodies external to general government - - -
|Rates clawback - - -
|var 174,388 - -
]Remunem!inn due to employees 530,561 - -
[Accumulated Absences 435,682 7,643 -
|Receipts in advanee 720,601 - -
Trade craditors - 7,818 -
Other 6,929,684 - -
Total Short Term Creditors 4,133 (27 1,583,121

|- Long Term Creditars
CQther creditors falling due after more than one year

2W15/16 2014/15

G Departments

Other Councils

Publi¢ corporations and trading funds

Bedies external to general government
Rates clawback

Remuneration due to employees
Accumulated Absences

Receipts in advance
Trade creditors

Other

Total Long Term Creditoss

Fotal Croditors

The creditor balance for 'Other’ includes payments due to HMRC and the Council supplier.

¢ Payment of Invoices

9,131,092 1,563,121 =

The Council has a target of paying supplier invoices within 30 calendar days. During the year the Counci! paid 25057 invoices

totalling £38,946,470.

The Council paid:

18372 [72.53%] inveices within 30 calendar days;
264 {1.05%} invoices within 10 working days; and
6845 (27 .48%) invoices outside of the 30 day target.

The average number of days taken to pay suppliers during the year was 28.8 days.
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Provisions
Inzrease in Interest cast andfor
Batance as ot 1 prevision Unused amounis discount ratn Balance as ot 31
Provislons Apedl 2015 during yoar. Utilised during year reversed changes March 2016
£ i £ £ £ [
Landfill provision Craigavod 2,877,842 = - - 1194,060) 2,683,782
Single Status 1,563,302 619,805 1,710,671 - - 472,436
Landfill Provision Armagh § 246,019 - - - - 246,019 |
[Legal tssues 400,000 - - - . 400,000
Total 5,087,163 4$19.805 1.710,67% - {194,660) 3,802,237
Current Provisions F i S # — Sl 472,436
Long Term Provisions | 3,523,861 = 1194,050) 3,329,201
Tatal 5,087,163 619,805 1,710,671 - 1194 060} 3.892,237
Comparative Year
Incroase in Interest cost andfer
Batance as 31 1 provision Unused ameounts discount zate Bolance as ot 33
Provisions April 2034 duting ynar Ltillsed during year reversed thanges March 2015,
£ £ £ £ £ £
Landfill provision Craigavot - - = - = -
Singhe Status - - - o = =
!Landﬁll Provision Armagh - - - - - -
Legal Issues - = - - o -

Current Provisions —— = f cotirrae) | RN L SR e ] e i |
Long Term Provisions -

Total = e

Landfill provision Craigavon Site

) Environment Agency requirement of an adequate provision for landfil aftercare costs. This was formally revalued in 2014715 by an external company
to ensure that the provision is an adequate estimate for the landfill cost liability

Single Status

This provision is set aside ta provide for costs associated with a review of salaries and wages. This process should completed during the 2016/17
financial year.

Landfi!l Provision Armagh Site

This represents estimated resoration and aftercare costs in respect of a former landfill site which closed a number of years ago.

Legal issues

The provision is set aside for potential legal costs and repayment claims that are currently on-going.
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20 Financlal instruments

F

b

The Council has no material exposure to any of the risk types (dentified below in its dealings with Financial Instruments,

Credit Risk

Credit risk arises from deposits with banks and finamelal institutions, as wel as credit exposures to the Council’s customers. Customers are assessed,
taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factars, with individual credit limits baing set in accordance with internal ratings in
accordante with parameters set by the Council, The provision for bad and doubtful debts reflects the Council’s assessment of the risk of non-payment
by trade debtors and, as such, there is no further additional estimated exposure to default and inability to collect.

Trade debtors, inclusive of VAT, can be analysed as follows:

[Trade debtors |

There Is no historical experience of default in relation to deposits with banks and ather financial institutions, Therefore there is no estimated exposure
fo risk of default.

Liquidity Risk
As the Council has ready access to berrowings from the Department for Finance (formerly Department of Finance and Persannel)'s Consolidated Fund,
there is no significant risk that it wil be unable to raise fi to meet its commi under Financial Instruments. The maturity analysis of Fnanciat

liabilities is included in notes 16 to 18. All trade and other payatles are due for payment within one year.

Market Risk

Interest rate risk

The Council is exposed ta risk |n terms of [ts exp eto rate mo ts on its borrowings and investments.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The cruncil has 3 Eurc bank account for paymnets however dug to the size of the bank balance this would net be considered a mataria toloss

arising from movements in exchange rates.

Falr Value of Soft Loans and Government Loans
The Countil is in receipt of lpans from the Depariment for Finance (formerly Department of Finance and Personnel] that differ from the prevailing
market rates, and also of Market Rate [oans. The Tair value of these loans is £65,597,650: analysed as follows.

[4
| Government Loans T 60,455_&
Market Loans N E T T
[ Tatal 65,597,650

The Council has not made any loans to veluntary organisatians or other external bodies.

Retirement Benefits

Participation in the Northern Ireland Local G Officers’ Pension Fund.

As part of the 1erms and conditions of employment of its officers and other employees, the Council offers retirement benefits. Although these benefits
wil not actually be payable until employees retire, the Council has a commitment 1o make the payments that need to be disclosed at the time that
employees earn thelr fulure entitiement

The Counc'| partcipates in the Northern Ireland Local Government Officers’ Pension Fund administered by the Northern Irefand Local Government
OHicers' Superannuation Committee, This is a funded scheme, meaning that the Counc? and employees pay contributions into a fund, calculated at 3
level intended 10 balance the penion's liabilities with investment assets.

Transactions refating to retirement benefits - Comprehensive income and Expenditure Statement Charges:

The Council recegnises the cost of retirament benefits in the Cost of Servicas on Continuing Operations when they are earned by employees, rather than
when the henefils are eventually paid as peasions,

However, the charge the Council I$ required to make against district rates is based on the cash payable in the year, and the real cost of retirement
benefits is reversed out in the adjestments between accounting basis & funding bas:s under regulations line, in the Movement on Aeserves Statement.
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The following transactions have been made in the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement and the adjustments between accounting basis &
funding bas's under regulations line, in the Movement on Reserves Statement during the year:

015716

Net cost of services

Curtent service cast 7,572,000 -
|Past service cost/Igain) 117,000 -
Gains and losses on sett'ements of curtaiments = =

[Net operating expenditure:

Net Interest on net defined banefit tiability (asset) 1,285,000 =

Total Post-empl Benefits charged to the Surpius of Deficit on the Provision of

1Servku 974,000 =
Movement \n Reserves Statement
Reversal of net charges made for retirement Denehits In accordance with 1A 10 and the

Code (8,974,000] =

Actual amaunt changed against the general fund balance for pensions (n the year:

Emplevets coniributions payable to scheme 6,114,000 =

Net charge Lo The Camprefensiae Incoma and Expendituee Siatement

The service cost figures include an afl e far 1 of 0.3% {£90K]

Remeassurements eecognlsed In Other Comprehenuve

Inceme and Expend:iture 201516 2014715
£
[Liabitity gains/{losses} due to change in assumptions {11,901,000) -
|Liability experience gains/{losses) arising in the year 1,216,000} .
Actuarial gains/{losses) on plan assets 728.000 =
Other - {if apglicable) ) f xuil

Total gains/{losses] recognised in Other Eomprebenslve Income and Expendijure {12,350,1B8) -

c Assets and liabilities in relation to retirement benefits

fecancilitation of present vatue of the wwheme liabliitles: Note 2015716 2014/15
[i
jBaI:nce asat1 April 150,321,188 -
Current service cost 7,572,000 -
Interest cast £,241,000 -
Contributions by members 1,656,000 -
[Remeasurement |gains) and losses:
Actusarial gains/losses arising from changes in financial assumptions (11,801,000} -
Actuarial gains/lasses arising from demographic changes - =
Actuarial gains/losses arising on liabilitles from experience 11,216,000) -
Other iif apolicable) {1,188} -
Past service cnslsl[!alns) 117,000 -
Losses/igains] on curtailments 0 -
Liabilities extinguished on settl - -
Estimated unfunded benefits paid 92,000} -
Estimated benefits paid 13,893,000 -
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Reconciliation of present value of the scheme assets: Note 2015/16 14718
E £
IBalance as at 1 April 148,305,000 -
Interest Income 4,956,000 -
Contributions by members 1,656,000 -
Caontributions by employer 6,022,000 -
Contributions in respect of unfunded benefits 92,000 -
ement gain/{loss) {728,000} -
|Assets distributed on setilements - -
Unfunded benelits paid {92,000} -
|Benefits paid (3,993,000} -
Batanty a3 at 31 March 156,218,000 -
The actual retusrn on scheme assets in the year was a gain of £4,228,000.
B 4+ | D16 G 0 D 014
[ £ £
Equity invesiments [ T BT P! [
Bonds o e e T [
Property
Cash
Other

The above asset values are at bid value as requirad by 1AS 19.

The amounts included im the fair value of plan assets for property occupied by the Council was nil

The Council’s share of the Met Pension Llabllity (included In the Balance Sheet):

31/03/2016 11/03/2015 A1/a3/ama
£ £
Fair Value of Empioyer Assets 356,218,000 - -
|Present value of funded defined benefit obligati {187,451.000) b= s g

Pension asset/(liability) of Funded Scheme 131,233,000 - .
Present Valua of unfunded defined bens-ﬁl ohligation o _{1,753,000] || ri i o H R T X -

|D|her mavement in the habﬁ'itv fasset] (if applicable) a a 2
[Wet asser/{liability) arising trom the defined benefit obligatian {32,486,000) - -

Amaount in the Balance sheet:
Liabifities
Assets

SRR

d $cheme history

Anabpili of scheme ossets and RabRiLies 51/05,H016 3170372015 33/03/2014
Fair Value of Assets in pension scheme 156,218,000 o -
Present Valug of Defined Benefit Obligation {188, 704,000} . | |
Surplus/(deficit) in the Scheme {32,486,000) - -

| H 4] O 014

£ £ £

Actuarial gains/ilosses) 12,350,188 - -
Expected Return on Plan Assets - ] LY -
lincrease/{decrease) in irrecoverable surplus from membership fall and other factors - -
Jll recognised in Other Comprehensive Intome and Expenditure 12,350,188 - -
IEumuIalive actuarial gans and losses 12.390.18-8 - -
[
|Histery of experi gains and losses:
Experience gains and {losses) on assets ey 1 EEE
Experience gains and {losses| on liabikties TEmREE £

The liabilities show the underlying commitments that the authority has in the long run to pay retirement benefits. The total liabiity of £32.486m has a
substantial impact on the net worth ol the Council as recorded in the Balance Sheet, resuiting in a net liabisty of £32.486m.

However, itatutory arrangements fer funding the delicit mean that the financial position of the Council remains healthy. The deficit on the Northern
Ireland Local Gevernment Officers’ Pension Fund sheould be made goed by increased contributicns over the remainimg worleng life of employees,
asiessed by the scheme actuary.
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Mo allowance has been made for Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) Equalisation as Aon Hewitt has advised that the impact of allawing for it is
currently uncertain.

Analysis of projected to be charged to the Comprehensive | and Expenditure Statement for the year to 31 March 2017

31/03/2017 310372017

|Projectad current rost
Net Interest on the net defined benefit liability {asset]

Past service cost
Gains and losses on settiements or curtaiiments

History of experience galns and losses

% %
Expesience {gains and {| ) on Assets -0.47 0 of
Experience gains and (losses] on Liabities 0.654 0 o}

e Basis for estimating assets and Hablities

2015/16 2014/15

iong-teem oxpected rale of seturn on assels in the scheme

Iggin-
Bonds
L=t

|Longevity at 65 for future pensioners:
Men
IWomen
!Inﬁaliwr'ension Increase Rate
Salary Increase Ral}

Ex ed Return on Assets
|Discoum Rate

IPerulon accounts revaluation rate
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Funded Penslon Schama Benefits

|Discoum Rate Ass b

Adjustment to discount rate

Present value of the total obligation

% change in the present value of the total obligation

Projected service cost
|Approximate % change In projected service cost

Rate of General Increase in Salarles

Adjustment 1o salary increase rate

Present value of the total obligation

L

% change in the p t valug of the total obligati
Froiened sarvice cost

Approximate % change in projected service cost

et 1 ] [

[Rate of ) to Pensions in P; and Deferred Pension Assumpti

Adjustment to pension intrease rate

Present value of the total obligation

% change in the present value of the total obligation
Projected service cost

Approximate % l'."lﬂl“! in ﬂ'DEﬂ"d Service cost

[Pest Retl Martality Assumptl

Ad to mortality age rating assumption®
Present valug of the total obligati

% change in the present vatue of tha total abligation
Projected service cost

ggplnumate % change in projected service cost

* A raiing of +1 year means that members are assumed to follow the mortality pattern of the base table above for an individual that is 1 year older then
that

f Major categories of plan assets as percentage of total plan assets

TS0/ E01G

Equity investments
G Bonds
Corporate Bonds
|Property
sh
Other
alal

g Northern Ireland Clvil Service Pension Arrangements

The Northern Ireland Civil Service Pension arrangements are unfunded multi-employer defined benefit schemes but the Council is unable to identify its
share of the underlying assets and liabilities. The most up 10 date actuarial valuation was carried out as at 31/03/2012. This valuation is then reviewed by
the Scheme Actuary and updated to reflect current conditions and rotled forward to the reporting date of the DFP Superannuation and Onther Allowances
Resource Accounts as at 31 March 2016.

Follewing reform on the 1 April 2015, the Actuary advised that the assumpti pplied by the predecessor councils of Armagh City, Banbridge and
Craigavon Borough Council were not consistent, as a result the Actusry has had to rebase the opening liabii=ties on a consi set of ptions at 1
April 2015,

Ni Civil Service Pension relates only to Planning and Museum staff.
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ated Aswsets Azcount

Opening balance

Add: new donated assets received {condition of use not met]
Less: amounts released to the District Fund - Comprehensive

i and Expenditure Atcount [conditions met}

o ]

The Council has no donated assets.
3 0 d d o H b i

£ E

Opening balance [ o
s L

Add: new capital grants received in advance |condition of use not met} i N o
Less: amounts released to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement 0

24 Contingencies

The Council has no contingencies to disciose.
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25 Opening Balance Sheet Note as at 1st Aprll 2015

Transfers

Transfers

e R Elimination — T — Transfers
Armagh City & . n_ & - of inter Shadow from loint  Balance asatl
: : Districy Borough - - resuit of  Lentral - -
District Councit - councit Council Committee Apsil 2015
Counci Councl Boundary Governmen
balances
change t

£ £ E E E £ £ 1o i e
Ii’ropertv Plant & Equipment 55,207,408 | 38,046,960 | 72,987,784 - 627,719 [{163,971) | 3,729,010 36,110 170,471,020
[Heritage Assets 1,086,837 | 1,088,750 229,000 - - & c = 2,404,587
[investment Properties 4,685,513 - - - - - - - 4,685,513
Intangible Assets . 10,000 B - - - - - 10,000
Assets Held for Sale - - 5 5 B 5 . B -
Long Term Investments - - - - - & & = 5
|Investment in Associates and Joint Ventures - - - - - - - -
Long Term Debtors - 141,315 1,810,670 - - - - - 1,951,985

LONG TERM ASSETS

60,979,758

35,287.025

75,027,454

3,729,010

175,523,105

Short Term Investments

Inventories 67,892 81,954 206,535 - - - - - 356,381
Short Term Debtors 4,726,107 | 3,382,514 5,190,591 | {3,073,462) 947,759 - 332,373 51,433 11,557,315
Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,518,202 | 1,827,520 4,293,812 | {2,000,000) - - - 77,049 5,816,583
Assets Held for Sale - - 85,000 - - - - - 85,000
CURRENT ASSETS 6,312,261 5,351,988 (5,073,462) 947,759 332,373 128,482 17,815,279
Bank Overdraft - - - . - - - - -

Short Term Borrowing 2,430,974 | 1,B95,354 - (2,000,000) - - - - 2,326,328
Short Term Creditors 4,954,768 | 2,525,951 3,967,506 | {3,073,462) | 1,583,121 - 332,373 108,583 10,438,840
Provisions - - 1,563,302 - - - - - 1,563,302

Liabilities in Disposal Groups

CURRENT LIABILITIES 7425742 4,421,305 5530808 (5073,462) 1,583,121 332,373 108,%83 14,328 470
Long Term Creditors 7,991 1,710 - - - - - - 9,701
Provisions 246,019 - 3,277,842 - - - - & 3,523,861
Long Term Borrowing 23,157,707 | 17,890,955 5,279,808 - - - - - 47,328,470
Other Long Term Liabilities 12,587,000 | 7,729,188 | 21,700,000 - - - = = 41,016,188

Capital Grants Receipts in Advance

Donated Assets Account - - - - - - - - -
LONG TERM LIABILITIES 35,998,717 25,621,853 31,257,650 92,878,220
NET ASSETS 23,867,500 14,635,855 148,014,934 50,131,694
USABLE RESERVES

Capital Receipts Reserve - - 329,166 - . - - - 329,166
Capital Grants Unapplied Account - - - - - - - - -
Capital Fund . 385,040 | 3,689,057 - g g s g 4,074,097
Renewal and Repairs Fund - - 150,258 - - - - - 150,298
Other Balances and Reserves 3,998,000 813,482 - - - - = = 4,811,482
General Fund 3,614,302 | 2,589,431 5,911,306 - - - G 19,899 12,134,938
TOTAL USABLE RESERVES 7,612,302 3,787,953 = 10,079,827 21,485,981
UNUSABLE RESERVES

Capital Adjustment Account 16,737,684 | 7,707,392 | 39,360,878 - - {72,599) | 3,729,010 36,111 67,498,477
Financial Instruments Adjustment Account - . - - 5 5 . 3 -
Revaluation Reserve 12,224,464 | 10,987,694 | 20,486,430 - - [91,372) = - 43,607,216
Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve - - - - - - - - -
Pensions Reserve 12,587,000} | (7,729,188} | (21,700,000} - - o 0 G (42,016,188)
Capital Recelpts Deferred Account - - - - - - - - -
Accumulated Absences Account {119,951} { (117,996} (212,202} - {7,643} - - - {457,792)

Landfill Regulations Reserve

Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

TOTAL UNUSABLE RESERVES

16,255,187

10,847,902

37,935,107

{7,643)

{163,971) | 3,729,010 36,111

68,631,713

23,867,500

14,635,855

3729000 55,000

45,014,934

(7,643}

(163,871}

90,131,694
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26 Other cash flow disclosures
a Analysis of Adjustments to Surplus/Deficit on the Provision of Services

Adjustment to surplus or deficit on the provision of services for

noncash movements Notes 2015/16 2014/15
£ £
Depreciation 1la 9,515,092 -
Impairment & downward revaluations (& non-sale derecognitions) 11a - -
Amortisation (included with depreciation above) - -
{Increase}/Decrease in Stock 19 T P e
{Increase)/Decrease in Debtors 15 i oA, i
Increase/(decrease) in impairment provision for bad debts 15 R
Increase/{Decrease) in Creditors 18 [ 5 ~ 1583,121°
Increase/{Decrease) in Interest Creditors [ S T | e T A
Payments to NILGOSC 21 2,860,000 -
Carrying amount of non-current assets and assets held for sale sold 1la/f 85,000 -
AIC/WIP written off to Net Cost of Services 1la - -
Contributions to Other Reserves/Provisions Lo f{yoed4meyl o =
Mavement in value of investment properties-included above in RE it e T B
Impairment & downward revaluations {& non-sale derecognitions) 1 o= ) | A S AN
Amounts posted to CIES from Donated Assets Account 22 - -

Adjust for items included in the net surplus or deficit on the provision

of services that are investing and financing activities 2014/15

Purchase of short-term {not considered to be cash equivalents} and long-

term investments {includes investments in associates, joint ventures and
Proceeds from short-term {not considered to be cash equivalents] and

long-term investments {includes investments in associates, joint

ventures and subsidiaries)
Proceeds from the sale of PP&E, investment property and intangible

assets {92,528} -
Capital grants included in "Taxation & non-specific grant income" L s Tl
435,30

b Cash and Cash Equivalents

For the purposes of the cash flow statement, cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and in bank and short term
deposits and investments {considered to be cash equivalents), net of outstanding bank overdrafts. Cash and cash
equivalents at the end of the reporting period as shown in the statement of cash flows can be reconciled to the related
items in the Balance Sheet as follows:

Cash and Bank balances 6,872,607 - -

Short Term Deposits (considered to be Cash Equivalents) 5 - -
Short Term Investments (considered to be Cash d T S PR Fea P e
Equivalents) T e | L i | BT P i
Bank Overdraft 5

6,872,607 - -

87
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Council holds monies on behalf of Anderson Trust, a third party Coal Fund which Council administers and
makes annual contributions to the charity on its behalf. These balances do not appear an Council's balance
sheet. As at 31 March 2016 third party investments totalled £31,689 {2015 £32,129})

Council administers a “Keep Cosy” Oil Stamp Savings Scheme as part of a Public Health Agency funded project
in which in retailers supply saving stamps to individuals, lodge the funds and Council reimburses the Ol
Companies on redemption of the stamps. As this is a holding account, these transactions or balances are not
reflected in the financial statements. The balance on the Oil Stamp account was £2,522 at 31 March 2016
(2015 £34,245),

S Cash Fiow Statément: Qperating Activities! i e Ao R R SR 01 5/16 B E014/1E
The cash fiows from operating activities include: £ E

e A

Interest received [ _Jﬁfﬁism'“h ¥ -

Interest paid 2,611,804 =it

bl Cash flows from Investing Activities 2 AL B W e

Purchase of fixed assets, investmant property and Intangible assets 9,933,158 827,719
Purchase of Short Term Investments (not considered to be cash PR T
equivalents) £ =
Purchase of Long Term Investments i r =i
Other Payments for anestlnﬁﬂ:tivitles - ifpm ,h

Proceeds from the sale of fixed assets, investment property and

| intanE!ble assets

Proceeds fram Short Term Investments (not considered to be cash |
equivalents) Sy it g -]
Proceeds from Long Term Investments 3
|Capital Grants and Contributions Recaived {3,342, 773) e
|Other Receipts from Investing Activities P - _ ¥

{92,528) -

L} - -

Net Cash flaws from Investing Activities

3 Cash Hlows from Financlng Activities 2015/16 2014/15
£ £
Cash Recelpts from Short and Long Term Borrowing P E Pt
[Other Receipts from Financing Activities ; i

Cash payments far the reduction of the cutstanding Hability relating to a
finance lease and on-Balance Sheet PFI contracts

Repayment of Short and Long Term Borrowing {2,384,396) | -
|Other payments far Financing Activities ; PR e o

5{2.384 396)

Net cash tlows from Financing Activities =5 o0
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27 Usable Reserves
a8 Capital Receipts Reserve
These are capital receipts which have originated primarily from the sale of assets which have not yet been used to finance
capital expenditure.

The Capital Receipts Reserve is credited with the proceeds from fixed asset sales and other monies defined by statute as
capital receipts. These are originally credited to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement as part of the
gain/loss on disposal and posted out via the Movement in Reserves 5tatement to the Capital Receipts Reserve, The reserve
is written down when resources are applied to finance new capital expenditure or set aside to reduce an authority’s capital
financing requirement (or used for other purposes permitted by statute).

Capital Receipts Reserve 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

£ £
At 1 April 329,166 =

Movement
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund

Disposal of Non Current Assets/ Capital Sales 3,11, 24 92,528 -
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 3,12 - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs caiculated in accordance with
statutory requirements

Other Movements - -

At 31 March 421,694 5

b Capital Grants Unapplied account
Where a capital grant or contribution {or part thereof) has been recognised as income in the Comprehensive Income and
Expenditure Statement, but the expenditure to be financed from that grant or contribution has not been incurred at the
Balance Sheet date, the grant or contribution shall be transferred to the Capital Grants Unapplied Account (within the
usable reserves section of the balance sheet), reflecting its status as a capital resource available to finance expenditure.
This transfer is reported in the Movement in Reserves Statement.

When, at a future date, the expenditure to be financed from the grant or contribution is incurred, the grant or contribution
{or part thereof} shall be transferred from the Capital Grants Unapplied Account to the Capital Adjustment Account,
reflecting the application of capital resources to finance expenditure. This transfer is also reported in the Movement in
Reserves Statement or in the notes to the accounts.

At 1 April R .
Movement
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year R .
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year - -

At 31 March - -
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¢ Capital Fund

This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI} 1972, however this section of the act was
repealed under the Local Government Finance Act {Nothern Ireland) 2011. Councils should disclose details where any of

these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

Capital Fund Nates 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £
At 1 April 4,074,097 -

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund

Transfers between Capital Fund & CAA to finance Capital Expenditure

12 [

At 31 March

Craigavon Leisure Centre

Banbridge Legacy projects

General

Total

| 4,074,007

d Renewal and Repairs Fund
This fund was established under section 56 of the Local Government Act (NI) 1972, however this section of the act was
repealed under the Local Government Finance Act (Nothern Ireland) 2011. Councils should disclose details where any of
these reserves are earmarked for specific purposes.

Renewal and Repairs Fund 31/03/2016  31/03/2015
£ £
At 1 April 150,298 2

Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund

Transfers between Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to finance Capital
Expenditure

e

Legionella & Fire Risk o 50208
General AR T
Total 150,298

a0
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e Other Balances & Reserves

Other Balances & Reserves Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £
At 1 April 4,811,482 -
Transfers between statutory & other reserves & the General Fund {1,180,883) -
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to F A eabin . 1 k;
finance capital expenditure 12 e e R St S

Armagh Economic Regeneration

Keady & Richhill Environmental Improvements

Armagh Gaol

Banbridge Oid Tech

Craigavon Public Realm

General Repairs & Renewals

Taotal

3,630,599

This reserve is used to fund projects from Legacy Councils.

f General Fund

This reserve shows the accounting cost in the year of providing services in accordance with generally accepted accounting
practices, rather than the amount to be funded from District Rates. Councils raise rates to cover expenditure in accordance
with regulations; this may be different from the accounting cost. The taxation position is shown in the Movement in

Reserves Statement.

£ £

At 1 Aprit 12,134,938 -
Applied Capital Grants 3,22,24 {3,342,773) -
Unapplied Capital Grants received in year - -
Direct Revenue Financing 3,12 - -
Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 3 9,515,092 -
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 3 {4,684,451) -
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute

3,12 - -
Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services CIES (943,839} {(7,643)
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the General Fund

1,180,883 -

Net movements on Pension Reserve 3,21 2,860,000 -
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 3,11,24 (7,528) -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with
statutory requirements 37,890 7,643
Other Movements o S
At 31 March 16,750,212 -

1
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28

g Other Usable Reserves

Other Usable Reserves Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £

At 1 April 5 -

Applied Capital Grants 3,22, 24 5 -

Unapplied Capital Grants received in year R -
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year - .

Direct Revenue Financing 3,12 - -
Depreciation and Impairment adjustment 3 - o
Statutory Provision for ﬁnanclng Capital Investment 3 - -
Net Revenue expenditure funded from capital under statute 3,12 - -

Surplus/(Deficit) on the Provision of Services - -
Transfers between Statutory and Other Reserves and the General Fund - -

Net movernents on Pension Reserve 3,21 - -
Disposal of Fixed Assets/Capital Sales 3,11, 24 - -
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 3,12 - -

Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with
statutory requirements . .
Revaluation & Impairment 11, 21 - -
Other Movements - -
Transfers between Capital Fund/ Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to
finance Capital Expenditure

12 . »

T T T T e T e e e e

Unusable Reserves
Capital Adjustment Account

The Capital Adjustment Account absorbs the timing differences arising from the different arrangements for accounting for
the consumption of non-current assets and for the acquisition, construction or enhancement of those assets under
statutory provisions.

The Account is debited with the cost of acquisition, construction or enhancement as depreciation, impairment losses and
amortisations are charged to the Comprehensive Income and Expenditure Statement, with reconciling postings from the

Revaluation Reserve to convert fair value figures to an historic cost basis.

The Account cantains accumulated gains and losses on Investrent Properties and gains recognised on donated assets that
have yet to be consumed by the Council.

The Account also contains revaluation gains accumulated on Property, Plant and Equipment before 1 April 2008, the date
that the Revaluation Reserve was created to hold such gains.
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£ £
At 1 April 67,498,477 -
Applied Capital Grants 3,22, 24 3,342,773 -
Unapplied Capital Grants transferred to CAA in year - -
Direct Revenue Financirlg 3,12 - -
Depreciation & Impairment adjustment 11 (9,515,092} -
Statutory Provision for financing Capital Investment 3 4,684,451 -
Net Revenue expenditure funded from Capital under statute 3,12 - -
Disposal of Fixed Assets/ Capital Sales 3,11 (85,000) -
Capital Receipts used to finance capital expenditure 3,12 - -
QOther Movements I ogamerr| 0 - ]'_I
Transfers between Capital Fund/Renewal & Repair Fund & CAA to
finance capital expenditure 12 - -
At 31 March 68,037,286 -

b Financial Instruments Adjustment Account
A0 e O 0 () (116 () )

£ £
At 1 April - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on 3

an accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with
|statutory requirements z =

_

The Council has no transactions that would require use of this account,

¢ Revaluation Reserve

The Revaluation Reserve contains the gains made by the Council arising from increases in the value of its Property, Plant
and Equipment and Intangible Assets. The reserve is reduced when assets with accumulated gains are:

- revalued downwards or impaired and the gains are lost
- used in the provision of services and the gains are consumed through depreciation, or
- disposed of and the gains are realised.

The reserve contains only revaluation gains accumulated since 1 April 2008, the date the reserve was created.
Accumulated gains arising before that date are consolidated into the balance on the Capital Adjustment Account.

The purpose of this account is to build up a balance based on the revaluation (upwards or downwards) of individual assets.
All such revaluations (excluding impairment losses that have been debited to Surplus/(Deficit} on the Provision of Services
in the) are mirrored in Other Comprehensive Income and Expenditure. It is a fundamental principle of this account that it
never becomes negative. If an asset was held at current value when derecognised, the balance held on the Revaluation
Reserve is written off to the Capital Adjustment Account.
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Revaluation Reserve Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015

£ £
At 1 April 43,607,216 -
Revaluation & Impairment 11,21 9,829,695 -
Other Movements PRl e
At 31 March 53,325,234 -

d Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve

Council's need to include a note if relevant or state not applicable.

Available for Sale Financial Instruments Reserve 31/03/2016 31/63/2015
£ £

At 1 April - -

Revaluation & Impairment 11,21 - -

At 31 Mareh - -

e Pension Reserve

Pension Reserve Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £

At 1 April {42,016,188) -

Net Movements on Pension Reserve 3,21 (2,860,000} -

Revaluation & Impairment 11,21 12,390,188 -

At 31 March (32,486,000} -

f Deferred Capital Receipts Account

The Deferred Capital Receipts Account records capital advances receivable where an amount equal to the advance is
included as a deferred capital receipt. These amounts are written down each year by the amount of capital debt repaid to

the Council in that year.

Capital Receipts Deferred Account Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £
At 1 April - -
Other Mavements R sl =)
At 31 March - -

g Accumulated Absences Account

The Accumulated Absences Account absorbs the differences that would otherwise arise on the General Fund balance from
accruing for compensated absences earned but not taken in the year e.g. staff annual leave entitlement carried forward at
the end of the financial year. Statutory arrangements are expected to require that the impact on the General Fund is

neutralised by transfers to or from this Accumulated Absences Account.
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A ated Absences Acca ote 03/2016 03/20
£
At 1 April (457,792} -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with

statutory requirements {37,890 {7,643)

i

h Provisions Discount Rate Reserve

[l
h

At 1 April - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calcutated in accordance with

statutory requirements 5 5

Other Movements - -

At 31 March = e

i Landfill Regulations Reserve

Council has no transactions in this reserve.

Landfill Regulations Reserve Notes 31/03/2016 31/03/2015
£ £
At 1 April - -
Difference between finance and other costs and income calculated on
an accounting basis and finance costs calculated in accordance with
statutory requirements r g

At 31 March - -
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30

31

Significant Trading Operations

The Council considers a trading operation exists where the service it provides is competitive i.e. the user always has the
choice to use an alternative supplier to the Council and the Council charges the user on a basis other that a straightforward
recharge of the Council's costs in supplying the service. The Council uses a variety of charging mechanisms such as quoted
lump sums, fired periodical charges or rates, or a combination of these.

In deciding whether a trading operation is significant the Council takes both financial and non-financial criteria into
account.

Financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:
- the risk of financial loss the Council may be exposed to in providing the service to the user.
Non-financial criteria taken into account in deciding whether trading operations are significant to the Council are:

- the importance of each individual trading operation to demonstrating the achievement of Council targets and improving
performance.

- the exposure of the Council to service reputational loss risk by providing the service

- whether the provision of the service is likely to be of interest to the Council's key stakeholders and their needs.

In applying the aforementioned criteria, the Council presents the following information regarding its off-street parking
services:

Significant Trading Operations 2015/16 2014/15

Turnover  Profit/{Loss) TJurnover  Prafit/{Loss)
£

Off-street Parking Services

| 789,122 | 272,588 | - | :

Agency Services

The Council does not engage in any agency services.

Related Party Transactions

A Related Party Transaction is a transfer of resources or obligations between related parties, regardless of whether a price
is charged. Related Party Transaction exclude transactions with any other entity that is a related party solely because of its
economic dependence on the Council or the Government of which it forms part. A related party is one that has the ability
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating decisions.
This includes cases where the related party entity and another entity are subject to common control but excludes providers
of finance in the course of their normal business with the Council and Trade Unions in the course of their normal dealings
with the Council. In addition where the relationship with the Council and the entity is solely that of an Agency (see note 30)
these are not deemed to be Related Party Transactions.
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Transactions with related parties not disclosed elsewhere in these financial statements are set out below, where a
description of the nature, the amount of the transaction and the amount of the outstanding balance is as follows.

The Council paid grants and other payments of £692,490 to a number of organisations in which Councillors and Council
officers had an interest. These grants were made with proper consideration of declaration of interests.

Memhbership of External Bodies Councillors  Grants Other Payments (Gross)

No £ £
Armagh Business Centre Board 1 24,281
Banbridge and District Sports Association 3 21,000
Banbridge District Arts Committee 1 17,000 280
Banbridge District Enterprises Ltd 1 18,458
Banbridge District Twinning Association 1 5,000 163
Banbridge Performing Arts Festival Committee 3 5,000
Brownlow Ltd 2 510
Citizens Advice Bureau {Armagh & Banbridge only) 3 226,250 1,755
Craigavon Arts in Motion 1 21,833
East Border Region Board 3 20,000 2,372
Gilford Community Forum 4 12,329
ICBAN 4 10,000
Lough Neagh Partnership Board 1 25,000
National Association of Councillors B 6,560
NI Amenity Council 2 2,735
NILGA 8 116,672
Portadown 2000 2 94,933
Portadown Tennis Ltd 2 6,349
Shankill {Lurgan} Community Projects 1 41,000 729
Somme Advisory Council 2 12,280

53 524,534 167,956

ar
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Councillors were alsa associated with the following organisations to which no payments were made during 2015-16.

Armagh Economic Development Group

Armagh Renewed Ltd

Armagh Sports Forum

Armed Forces Veterans Advocate

Banbridge and District Sports Association (Exec Comm)
Banbridge Tourist Development Association
Banbridge Youth Resource Centre Advisory Group
Blackwater Regional Partnership

Board of Banbridge Community Regeneration
Craigavon Industrial Development Organisation
Craigavon Museum Committee

Down Rural Area Partnership Joint Committee
Down Rural Area Partnership Local Action Group
City Centre Management Board

East Border Region Members Forum

Keady Community Centre Working Group

Keady Management Group

Lagan Canal Trust Steering Group

Local Action Group {LAG)

Lurgan Town Arena

Mall Steering Group

Markethill Recreation Management Group
Mayfair Business Centre

Mourne Heritage Trust

Mourne Tourism Destination Forum

Navan Advisory Board

Neagh Bann Local Flood Forum

Neighbourhood Renewal Partnership Board
Newry/Portadown Canal Joint Development Comm
N1 Local Government Partnership of Traveller Issues
NILGA {substitute)

Northern Ireland Housing Council

Partnership Panel for Northern Ireland

PCSP

Peace Jll Partnership

Regional Tourism Partnership Working Group
Rent Assessment Panel

Reserve Forces & Cadets Association for NI

River Bann Enhancement Group

SELB {Armagh and Banbridge only}

Sister City International Committee

Theatre Advisory Board
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Payments were also made during 2015/16 to the following Local Authorities:
Antrim and Newtownabbey Borough Council
Ards and North Down Borough Council
Mid and East Antrim Borough Council
Lisburn and Castlereagh City Council
Mid Ulster District Council
Newry Mourne & Down District Council
Belfast City Council
Fermanagh and Omagh District Council
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32  Prior Year Re-statement

The Council have no prior year restatements

33  Events After the Reporting Period

There were no events ocurring after 31 March 2016 which require adjustment to the Council's financial statements or
additional disclosures.

Date of Authorisation for Issue

The Chief Financial Officer authorised these financial statements for issue on 2‘? September 2016
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